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Vision
“To strive for operational excellence in Power Generation and to emerge

as environmental friendly and socially responsible leading Power
Company”.

Mission

i. To strive towards greater cost competitiveness and work towards
continued financial strength;

ii. To continually imbibe best practices from the best Indian and
International Organisations engaged in Power Generation;

iii. To play an active role in society and be sensitive to emerging
environmental issues.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2016-2017
To

The Members,
NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited.

Your Board of Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 11" Annual Report of your Company together
with the Audited Accounts for the year ended 315 March, 2017.

Performance

Physical

The 2x500 MW Thermal Power Plant at Tuticorin has achieved its Commercial Operation Declaration
(COD) during the year 2015-16 i.e. Unit-1 on 18" June, 2015 and Unit-2 on 29® August, 2015. During the
year 2016-17, 6252.74 MU of Power was generated (excluding surrender of Power 891 MU by various
DISCOMS) registering a growth of 71.05 % aver 2015-16.

The details of Generation and Export of Power during the financial year 2016-17 are furnished below:

Power Generation (MU) Power Export (MU)

2016-17 2015-16 2016-17 2015-16
Unit-1 3069.236 1982.629 2850.365 1797.073
Unit-2 3183.507 1672.783 2056.486 1516.226
Total 6252.743 3655.412 5806.851 3313.299

During the year 2016-17, the first full year of commercial operation, the Thermal Units have registered an
annual PLF at 71.38%. The Company had achieved the Plant Availability Factor at 80.34% against the
norms of 83.00%. The reason for shortfall in attaining the target was mainly due to surrender of 891 MU of
Fower by various DISCOMS.

Productivity

The output per man shift achieved during the year 2016-17 is given below:
Product Unit 2016-17
Power KWhr 108119

Financial
Financial parameters achieved (MoU Target Vs Actual) during the financial year 2016-17 is furnished below:

Actual 2016-17
Rs. 2546 .53 crore

Financial Parameter MoU Target 2016-17

Rs.2527.25 crore.
(excluding energy/fuel charges for the
power surrender of 891 MU)

Revenue from operations
(Net of excise duty)

Operating profit as a percentage 33.82 37.42
of Revenue from Operations
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company in its first full year of operation registered a Power
sales of Rs.2524.07 crore as against Rs.121 8 17 crore recorded in the year 2015-16.

The Profit Before Tax (PBT) and the Profit After Tax (PAT) for the year 2016-17 are Rs.135.28 crore and
Rs.87.85 crore respectively, as against the PBT and PAT of (Rs.244.72 crore) and (Rs.160.03 crore)
respectively registered in the year 2015-16.

The details of financial resuits of the Company for the year 2016-17 and 2015-1 6 are as under:
{Rs. in crore)

Particulars ] 2016-17 2015-16
Total Income 262410 1231.20
Total Expenditure 1671.17 890.00
Gross Margin 952.93 341.20
Depreciation 360.47 268.61
Finance Cost 45718 317.31
Profit Before Tax 135.28 (244.72)
Deferred tax (4743) 84.69

LProfitAfter Tax 87.85 (160.03) J

Project Funding

Revised Cost Estimate-Il (RCE-1I) of 2x500MW Tuticorin Thermal Power Project approved by the Ministry of
Coal at Rs.7293.48 crore (June-2015 price level).

As per the prevalent norms, the project is to be funded with an equity and debt in the ratio of 30:70. As on
31t March, 2017 the total equity share capital of Rs.2188.04 crore has been fully subscribed by the
Promoters viz., NLC India Limited (NLCIL) and Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited
(TANGEDCO) in the ratio of 8911,

The Company has availed Rupee Term Loans from Bank of Baroda Consortium for Rs.2500 crore and
Bank of india Consortium for Rs.937 crore and during the year 2016-17, the Term Loans outstanding with
Bank of Baroda Consortium and Bank of India Consortium for Rs.3093.30 crore was refinanced by Power
Finance Corporation Limited. In addition to above and to avail the total debt capital facility of Rs.5105.44
crore as per RCE-l, the Company had also availed Rupee Term Loan of Rs.1184.92 crore from Power
Finance Corporation Limited.

The balance debt facility of Rs.483.52 crore Rupee Term Loan has been tied up with Bank of India.

The total debt outstanding of the Company as on 31.03.2017 is Rs.3940.35 crore.

MoU Rating for the year 2016-17

Your Company has achieved “Good" rating for its performance during 2016-17 in terms of the Memorandum
of Understanding {(MoU) entered into with NLC India Limited (Holding Company) as per DPE guidelines.
Status of Project Package Contracts

Performance Guarantee (PG) Tests of various packages are getting completed progressively and this is
being closely followed up.

Residual works as per project sanction like balance Roads & drains, phase-l! of Residential quarters,

construction of miscellaneous buildings for housing, the repair shop, work shop etc., are in various stages
of completion and the same is being foliowed up for expeditious completion.

o
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Supply of Coal

Your Company has signed a Fuel Supply Agreement (FSA) with Mahanadi Coalfields Ltd. (MCL), for
the supply of 3 Million Ton Per Annum (MTPA) of coal of 3700 GCV. Regular supply of coal under FSA
commenced since October, 2015 and MCL has supplied 1.45 Million Ton of coal for the year 2016-17.
In order to meet the shortfall in indigenous coal supply, imported coa! was procured through
e-procurement with e-reverse auction methodology so as to reduce the cost of coal by creating globai
competition. During the year, 2.164 Million Ton of imported coal was procured. FSA was signed on
14.09.2016 with Eastern Coalfields Ltd.,(ECL) for the supply of 0.3 MTPA of G4 grade coal (6300 GCV) and
a side agreement has also been entered with ECL to supply 1.0 MTPA of G4 grade coal (6300 GCV).

Consequent to signing of FSA with ECL, the FSA coal guantity from MCL was reduced from 3 MTPA to
2.565 MTPA.

Fly Ash Disposal

Fly Ash is being sold through e-Auction to Cement/Useful building materials Manufacturing Companies.
Fly ash is being supplied at free of cost to Brick Manufacturers as per Ministry of Environment and Forest
{(MoEF) guidelines. During the year 645787 Tons of fly ash was disposed.

Bottom Ash Disposal

As of now, 100% of bottom ash is being utilized for filling up of low lying area within the plant boundary and
also issued to cement and Bricks manufacturing companies. However Ash Dyke is proposed to be
constructed as a permanent measure for the disposal of bottom ash.

Land for Ash Dyke

The Govt.of Tamii Nadu accorded administrative sanction for acquisition of iand for the Ash Dyke for NTPL
Plant o the extent of 286.21 acres in Melpandiapuram Village, Ottapidaram Taluk in Thoothukudi under the
provisions of the Tamil Nadu Industrial Purposes Act, 1197 (Act 10 of 1997). Compensation has already
been disbursed to the land owners except for about 4.25 acres, which ia also under progress. Complying
with the extant procedure is in progress for taking physical possession of the lands.

Commercial
Power Allocation
The power share allocation is as follows:

Beneficiary State/UT Mw %
Andhra Pradesh 127.37 12.737
Karnataka 207.30 20.730
Kerala 7250 7.250
Tamil Nadu 416.70 41.670
Telangana o 150.13 15.013
Puducherry 26.00 2600
Total 1000 100
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Power Tariff

Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) constituted under the Electricity Regulatory Commission
Act, 1998, determines the Power tariff for generating companies owned or controlled by the Central Government
and also for generators selling power to more than one State. For your Company the tariff petition for the
period from the date of COD to 2019 has been filed with CERC and in this regard final order for Power Tariff
was issued by CERC during July, 2017.

Power Dues / Realisation

The outstanding power dues of the Company as on 31.03.2017 against the corresponding power dues

as on 31.03.2016 is tabulated below: (Rs. in crore)
AW Power dues as on
31.03.2016
Normal dues (within 80 days) 393.93
Overdue (beyond 60 days) 333.03
Total |: 726.96

Steps taken by the Company to improve power dues realisation in 2016-17

The Realisation from the power sales for the year 2015-16 was Rs.496.84 crore and the same for the year
2016-17 amounted to Rs.2262.62 crore. The improvement in the realisation of power dues from the
beneficiaries was mainly on account of persistent follow up with respective DISCOMS through written
communication at the highest levels, periodical visits to the aoffices of the DISCOMS etc.

Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
and Research & Development

Energy Conservation Programme

Your Company in association with “The Institution of Engineers (India) — Tuticorin Local Centre” organized
an All India Seminar “Solutions for Emerging Challenges in Industries” on 5t and 8" January 2017.
Energy Conservation Week was celebrated from 14" December, 2016 to 20" December 2016 during which
energy conservation and efficiency measures were disseminated in and around the Company through
campaigning, distribution of pamphlets, conducting competition for employees - Slogans / Suggestions /
Posters / Drawing / Training programme for Spouses etc.

Action has been taken to implement the Energy & Efficiency Management System in Turbine & Main
Auxiliaries and Natural Draught Cooling Towers for one of the units of the thermal plant and further step is
being initiated to replace the lights with LED lights.

Technology Absorption: Nil

Expenditure incurred on Research & Development: Nil

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange inflow: Nil

Foreign Exchange outflow: Rs. 236.94 crore

Risk Management

Your Company has an approved risk assessment and minimization procedure. The perceived potential
risks along with mitigation measures are being periodically reviewed by the Board.

Compliance under Persons with Disabilities Act, 1995

Your Company ensures compliance of provisions under the Persons with Disabilities Act, 1995 and as per
the guidelines of Department of Personnel & Training (DoPT). Your Company has provided certain facilities/
amenities to PwDs to meet their requirements so as to enable them to effectively discharge their duties.

-
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Compliance under the Right to Information Act, 2005

During the year 2016-17, there were twenty-three applications referred to the Company and the information
sought were fumished in time and there were no appeals to the Commission against the information furnished.
Compliance under Public Procurement Policy

The Ministry of Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises (MSME) has notified the Public Procurement Policy
and in terms of the said notification, an annual target for the year 2016-17 for procurement from MSME was
at 20% and the same was attained.

Human Resource Management

Your Company takes pride in its competent and highly motivated human resource significantly contributing
to the growth and mission of the company. Your Company maintains harmonious and cordial relationship
among the employees and with other stakeholders that leads to achieving organizational as well as individual
goals. Human resource has been the backbone of the Company. The thrust on achieving higher growth and
optimal utilization of manpower continued in the year under review also. The total manpower of the Company
as on 31% March, 2017 stood at 233 excluding contract workmen.

Employee Development

Your Company is continuously promoting training (including Apprentices Training), learning initiatives for
skill and competency building for not only its own employees but also for the contract workmen.
The training programme and module inciudes areas of Management, Computer, functional areas of thermal,
skill development, safety, CSR etc.

Industrial Relations

In general, the industrial relations scenario of the organization remained by and large peaceful and cordial
during the year 2016-17.

Welfare Activities

< Eye camp was conducted for the benefit of public and about 460 peoples were benefited.

% Blood donation camp was arranged and about 300 persons donated blood to government hospital,
Tuticorin

*» Drinking water is supplied to nearby Tsunami colony and labour colony people.

Township

The Township for the employees of NTPL was established in the year 2013 with 93 Quarters in the
Phase-l and the expansion of the same with addition of 154 Quarters in phase-Il is under progress. The
Township is provided with various facilities taking care of the needs of the employees and their families.

Environmental Management & Sustainable Development Projects

Your Company practices and promotes the best environment management and is committed to environment
friendly power generation. Your Company continues to plant trees in order to maintain the green belt
and so far about 20,000 trees have been planted in the Thermal Plant, Township premises and Port Trust
area which helps in maintaining clean environment, dust suppression, noise control, lowering the atmospheric
temperature and maintaining ecclogical balance.

Safety
Your Company has taken many measures to maintain a safe working environment at work places
viz., regular safety awareness training for contract workers, training programme for executives, routine
inspection for safety and house-keeping at various work locations, mock drill for fire and rescue, periodical
meetings to review the safety measures, display of safety sign boards & display of safety awareness
message in LED board.

<
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Safety awareness training for contract workers & Orientation Class for contract workmen-fresher's have
been conducted regularly and more than 2100 contract workers have attended the trainingin the year 2016-17.

Vigilance

In order to sensitize the employees of your Company measures such as Pro-active, Preventive and Punitive
vigilance activities were undertaken by Vigilance Department. Besides Surprise checks, Regular Checks,
CTE type examinations, quality check and Study/Inspection have been conducted and various system
improvements were achieved.

Various IT initiatives such as Integrated Complaint Management System, Public interface thro’ Social
Media, Webpage, Whatsapp Messenger, Payment to Contract Workmen by the Contractors through Bank
and Installation of Surveillance Camera have been taken besides mapping of corruption.

As was done during the last year in order to impart vigilance awareness and ethical character education,
programmes were conducted wherein more than 2000 school students of Tuticorin and Madurai participated.
Customized training programmes were also conducted to sensitize the employees.

Management Discussion & Analysis Report and Report on Corporate Governance

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report is furnished in Annexure -1. The report on Corporate
Governance together with Auditor’s Certificate on the compliance of conditions stipulated as per DPE
Guidelines on Corporate Governance is furnished in Annexure - 2 & 3 respectively.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company has a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act,2013. During the
year, an amount of Rs.46.93 lakh was spent towards providing 600 pairs of benches and desks to various
Government schools in Tuticorin District under CSR activities. As per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013,
report on CSR activities is furnished in Annexure - 4.

Further,as a part of CSR, the following activities are under progress:

a) Construction of compound wall for Veppalodai Government school & Government IT| for a value of
Rs. 60 lakh.

b) Development and maintenance of green belt plantation along the road side from Tuticorin Thermal plant
to roundana for a value of Rs.10.47 lakh.

c) Development of green belt plantation in area opposite to NTPL Township for a value of Rs.23 lakh and

d) Development and maintenance of green belt from VOC port guest house to coast guard for a value of
Rs.18.13 lakh.

Particulars of Employee

Particulars of employees as required under Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 - Nil.

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of Annual Return in terms of Section 134(3) read with 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
placed in Annexure - 5.

Loans, Guarantees and Investments

During the year 2016-17, the Company has notgranted any loan or guarantee or made any investments.

Transfer to Reserves
During the year 2016-17, no amount has been transferred to general reserve.

-
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Deposits

During the year 2016-17, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

Material Changes affecting financial position occurring between the date of Financial Statement
and Directors’ Report

There were no material changes affecting financial position occurring between the date of Financial Statement
and Directors’ Report.

Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace

Employees of your Company are covered by the rules of the Holding Company, NLC India Limited. In this
regard, a separate Committee has been constituted by NLC India Limited for looking into the complaints
relating to Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace. During the year 2016-17, no complaints were
received by the said Committee as regards to the employees of your Company.

AUDITORS
Statutory Audit

Ramesh and Ramachandran, Chartered Accountants, Chennai was appointed as the Statutory Auditor of
the Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), for the financial year 2016-17, under
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Board of Directors of the Company have fixed
Rs.1,75,000/- plus applicable service tax as the Statutory Audit Fees for the year 2016-17 in addition to
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actual.

Secretarial Audit

Shri.R Balasubramaniam, Practicing Company Secretary, Chennai was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor
for the year 2016 -17. Secretarial Audit Report and reply to the observations of the Secretarial Auditor is
furnished in Annexure - 8.

Internal Audit

J.Singh & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennai, has been appointed as the Internal Auditor of the
Company for the financial year 2016-17.

Cost Audit

M.Krishnaswamy & Associates, Cost Accountants, Chennai has been appointed as the Cost Auditor to
conduct the Cost Audit for the power plant of the Company for the year 2016-17.

C&AG's Comments

C&AG's Comments on the Financial Statements for the year ended 315 March, 2017 and the Management
reply to the said comments are furnished in Annexure - 7.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement as per Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Board of Directors declares: -

a. thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. that the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for
that period;

—&»

11" Annual Report 2016 - 2017



@ NLC TAMILNADU POWER LIMITED

NTPL
c. thatthe Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d. that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis and
e. the Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Smt.M.A.Helen (DIN:07346400) and Smt. S.Geetha (DIN:07770445) Directors representing TANGEDCO
were inducted in to the Board as Additional Directors with effect from 03.10.2016 and 23.03.2017 respectively.
$hri.S.Sambathkumar (DIN:07271417) Director and Smt.M.A.Helen, Additional Director representing
TANGEDCO relinquished from the Board with effect from 03.10.2016 and 14.03.2017 respectively.
Shri.A.R.Neelakanta Pillai relinquished as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from
01.03.2017 on attaining the age of superannuation and in his place Shri.M.Prabhagar was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 01.03.2017.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the contribution made by Shri.S.Sambathkumar and
Smt.M.A Helen during their tenure as Directors on the Board of the Company. The Board also places on
record its appreciation for the contribution made by Shri.A R Neelakanta Pillai during his tenure as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Dr. Sarat Kumar Acharya (DIN:03357603) and Shri. V.Thangapandian (DIN:07255163), Directors retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being efigible offers themselves for re-election.

Acknowledgement

The Board of Directors of your Company places on record their sincere appreciation for the continued
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The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to acknowledge with gratitude, co-operation and continued
support extended by the Government of TamilNadu, District Administration and the Statutory Authorities
concerned. The co-operation and support by the Comptrolier and Auditor General of India, the Statutory
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Neyveli
Date :02.09.2017

Dr. SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
CHAIRMAN
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ANNEXURE-1
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Industry Structure and Development

Power

Power is one of the most critical components of infrastructure for the economic growth and weifare of the
nation. The existence and development of adequate availability of power is essential for sustained growth of
the Indian economy. India’'s power sector is one of the most diversified in the world. Sources of power
generation range from conventional sources such as coal, lignite, natural gas, oil, hydro and nuciear power
to viable non-conventional sources such as wind, solar and agricultural and domestic waste.

Indian power sector is undergoing a significant change that has redefined the industry outlook. Sustained
economic growth continues to drive electricity demand in India. The Government of India’s focus on attaining
‘Power for all' has accelerated capacity addition in the cou ntry. At the same time, the competitive intensity
is increasing at both the market and supply sides (fuel, logistics, finances and manpower).

The total power generation installed capacity has increased from 1362 MW {Year-1947) to 326848.53 MW
ason 31.03.2017. (Source : CEA - Executive Summary March, 201 7).

Coal based Thermal Power stations are contributing 58.79% of the total Installed capacity. The renewable
power plants constituted 17.52% of total instailed capacity.

As per 12" Plan the target for the capacity addition of power was fixed at 88537 MW as against which
addition made upto March, 2017 was 99209.47 MW, which is 112.05% of the target and Thermal Power
capacity addition made upto March 2017 was 91730.45 MW as against the target of 72340 MW,

The Government of india has been supportive for the growth in the power sector and it has desired to set
plans for adding 1 lakh MW of solar power generation capacity and to double wind power generation
capacity to 60GW by the year 2022 so as to meet the power requirements.

Demand

During the year 2016-17 the power availability was 1134631MU as against the requirement of 1142092 MU,
with the deficit of 0.7% and in the peak hours the deficit was 1.6%, at the power supply deficit of 2608 MW.
In Southern Region, during the year 2016-17 the power availability was 305173MU as against the requirement
of 305655 MU with the power supply deficit of 0.2% at 482 MW and in the peak hours the power supply
deficit of 13 MW. Considering the GDP growth rate of 9% the Working Group on Power for 12* plan has
projected an energy demand of 1993 BU in the terminal year of 13" pian (2021-22).

Production

During the year 2016-17, the aggregate all-India installed capacity of electric power generating stations was
increased by 24760.69 MW. The electricity generation from all sources increased from 1107.82 BU in 2015-16
to 1159.84 BU in the year 2016-17 against the target of 1178 BU with a an overall growth rate of 4.70 %.

L 10_o
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SWOT Analysis
Strength

# The Company has a defined Vision and Mission.

& The Promoter Companies viz. NLC India Limited (NLCIL) and Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution
Corporation Limited (TANGEDCO) have best exposure and expertise in implementation and carrying
out operation and maintenance of Power Projects/Plants.

% Experienced Management team with committed and experienced work force.

< Good financiai support.

% Commitment to protect the stakeholder’s interest.

Weakness
< Dependent on external suppliers for supply of required Coal.

Opportunities

< Development of power sector through renewable energy sources.
% Increase in the per capita consumption of power.

« Policy initiatives/ incentives for power sector.

< Launch of smart cities mission by the Government of India.
Threats

< Stringent norms being set by the Regulators.

< Surrender of power by DISCOMS.

% Realization of power dues from DISCOMS

Segment-Wise Performance

Company is not a Multi-segmented Company.

Qutlook
Power
Coal based Thermal Plant

Your Company has established 2x500 MW Coal based Thermal Power Plant at Tuticorin in Tamil Nadu and
commercial operation of Unit-1 & Unit 2 of the said Power Plant was declared on 18.06.2015 & 29.08.2015
respectively. Capacity addition or establishment of new Power Projects will be considered at an
appropriatetime.

Risks and Concerns

« Stringent environmental norms prescribed by the respective authorities.
< Delay in acquisition of required land for Project/Plant requirement.
< Stringent operational norms prescribed by the Regulatory Authorities for the purpose of fixing the tariff.

—€D
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Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Internal audit is conducted by an external firm of Chartered Accountant covering all the areas of
operations and the report is subject to review by the Audit Committee. The Company has adequate internal
control systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of business. Audit Committee
monitors the financial reporting process through review of periodical financial statements. The adequacy of
internal control systems has been monitored by the Audit Committee. Further, the accounts of the Company
are subject to C&AG audit in addition to the propriety audit conducted by them.

Discussion on Financial Performance with reference to operational performance

Covered in the main report.

Environmental Protection & Conservation, Technological Conservation, Foreign Exchange
Conservation
Coveredin the main report.

Material Developments in Human resources, Industrial Relation front, including number of people
employed.

Covered in the main report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Covered in the main report.

Cautionary Statement

Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors Report describing the Company’s
strengths, strategies, projections and estimates are followed looking statement and progressive within the
meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed orimplied,
depending upon the economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental factors. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward looking statements.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA

CHAIRMAN
Place : Neyveli

Date :02.09.2017

—&B
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Annexure-2
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Mandatory Requirements
Company’s philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance
Transparency, accountability and integrity are the main ingredients of good Corporate Governance. Your
Company as a corporate citizen adheres to the standards of good corporate governance in letter and spirit.
Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of your Company is headed by a Non-executive Chairman. The composition of
Board of Directors of the Company as approved by the Government of India is as follows:

i. Directors representing NLCIL in ex-officio capacity - 4

ii. Director representing Ministry of Coal - 1

iii. Director representing TNEB (TANGEDCO) - 1

iv. Independent Directors - 3
a. Independent Director from NLCIL Board - 1

b. Other Independent Directors -2
Total 9

Present Composition of Board of Directors of the Company is not fully confirming to the composition
approved by the Government of India since three Independent Directors (including one Independent Director
from NLCIL Board) are required to be appointed on the Board of the Company. One Independent Director
from the Board of NLCIL has been nominated as an Independent Director on the Board of the Company and
would be appointed on the Board on issue of formal notification by the Ministry of Coal. The issue relating
to the appointment of other two Independent Directors on the Board of the Company has been referred to
the Ministry of Coal, the Administrative Ministry.

The particulars of the Board of Directors as on 31 March, 2017 and other details are furnished as follows:
: . - eI eesersessane BRer CommiiEe

Directors representing NLCIL As Member | As Chairman
Dr. Sarat Kumar Acharya (DIN:03357603)
Shri. Rakesh Kumar (DIN:02865335)

Shri. V. Thangapandian (DIN:07255163)
Shri. P. Selvakumar (DIN:07347130)
Director representing TANGEDCO

5 Smt. S.Geetha (DIN:07770445) 5 - -
Director representing Ministry of Coal
6 Shri.Mukesh Choudhary (DIN:07532479) 1 - -
“Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Management of Business & Board Procedure

The day-to-day management of business and affairs of the Company is being administered by the
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), who is not a member of the Board and he functions, subject to the
superintendence, control and direction of the Board. The CEO has been delegated with certain administrative

BlJWIN|—=
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and financial powers by the Board of Directors. Any proposal beyond the powers of CEQ and particularly
major decisions involving high value capital expenditure, annual plan, award of major contracts, mobilisation
of resources, loans and investments (other than Short-term Investments), borrowings and all policy decisions
inciuding policy relating to personnel matters are decided only at the Meetings of the Board/ Sub-Committee
of the Board as the case be applicable.

Date of Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the financial year 2016-17 seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the
following dates:

7"May 2016, 9" July 2016, 12" September 2016, 10" October 2016, 9" December 2016, 18" February 2017
and 20" March 2017,

Generally, at least one Board Meeting is held in every three months and minimum four such meetings are
held every year and the time gap between two board meetings did not exceed three months.

The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meeting held during the financial year 2016-17 were
as under:-

"4 | Dr SeratkumarAcharya 7
2 | Shri.Rakesh Kumar 7
3 | Shri.V.Thangapandian 7
4 | Shri.P.Seivakumar 7
5 | Shri.S.Sambathkumar - Relinquished w.e f. 03.10.2016
& | Shri. Mukesh Choudhary 6 inducted - we.f 31.05.2016
7 | Smt. M.A Helen - Inducted - we.f 03.10.2016 &
Relinquished w.e.f. 14.03.2017
g | Smt. S.Geetha - Inducted we.f 23.03.2017

Annual General Meeting Attendance

Dr.Sarat Kumar Acharya, Chairman, Shn Rakesh Kumar, Shri P. Selvakumar, Shri V.Thangapandian and
Shri Mukesh Choudhary, Directors attended the last Annual General Meeting held on 12 September, 2016.
Board Committees

The following Sub-Committees have been constituted by the Board of Directors

Sub-Committee of Board of Directors

A Sub-Committee of Board of Directors has been constituted to accord approval for pre-qualification
requirements (PQR) and technical specification in respect of various packages/purchases/works undertaken
by the Company for implementation of the Project and also to accord approval for short-listing of tenders,
qualification of bidders on PQR, techno-commercial conditions, for placement of orders and entering into
consultancy contracts as per the delegation granted by the Board. Presently, the Committee comprises
Dr.Sarat Kumar Acharya, as its Chairman and Shri Rakesh Kumar, Shri V. Thangapandian, ShriP.Selvakumar
and Smt S.Geetha, Direclors as its Members.

-&»
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Audit Committee

The terms of reference of Audit Committee conform to the reguirements of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance.

Presently the committee comprises Shri. Rakesh Kumar, Director as its Chairman and Shri V.Thangapandian,
Shri P.Selvakumar and Smt S.Geetha, Directors as its Members. In the absence of Independent Directors
on the Board, the Committee could not be constituted in accordance with the requirements of Companies
Act,2013 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance. On appointment of Independent Directors, the
Committee will be reconstituted as per the requirements.

During the financial year 2016-17 five meetings of the Audit Committee of the Board Directos were held on
the following dates:
7" May 2016, 9" July 2016, 12" September 2016, 9" December 2016 and 20" March 2017.

The details of attendance of Members at the Audit Committee Meetings of the Company held during the
year 2016-2017 were as under:

Chairman of the Committee

1_[ shriRakesh Kumar 5 |
Members

ShriV.Thangapandian 5
Shri P.Selvakumar 5
Shri S.Sambathkumar - Relinquished w.e.f 03.10.2016
Smt M.A Helen - Inducted - we.f 03.10.2016
6 | Smt S.Geetha - Inducted - w.e.f 23.03.2017

Note : Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The terms of reference of CSR Committee conform to the requirements of the provisions of the
Companies Act,2013.

Presently the committee comprises Shri V.Thangapandian, Director as its Chairman and
Shri Rakesh Kumar and Smt.S.Geetha, Directors as its Members. As stated earlier, in the absence of
Independent Director on the Board, the present Composition of Committee do not comply with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year 2016-17, one meeting was held on 9" December, 2016 and
Shri V.Thangapandian and Shri Rakesh Kumar members were attended the said meeting.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted with the terms of reference as notified
in the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time limited to below Board Level empioyees only and DPE
Guidelines for payment of Performance Related Pay (PRP).

—&Ep
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Presently the Committee comprises Shri. Rakesh Kumar, Shri. V. Thangapandian & Smt. S.Geetha, Directors
as its Members. In the absence of Independant Directors on the Board, the present composition of the
Committee do not comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 & DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance. On appointment of Independent Directors, the Committee will be reconstituted as per the
requirements.

No meeting has been held during the year under review.

Presently the employees of NLCIL are transferred and posted in the Company and they are governed by the
applicable rules of NLCIL including rules relating to payment of Performance Related Pay (PRP).

Remuneration to Directors
No Remuneration/Sitting Fee is being paid to any Part-time Official Directors.

Code of Conduct

As required under the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, the
Board of Directors of the Company have laid down a Code of Conduct applicable for all Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. In this regard a declaration signed by the Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) is reproduced below:

“l hereby confirm that all the Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel to whom the
Code of Conduct was applicable have affirmed compliance of the above code for the year ended
31 March, 2017".

General Body Meetings
The following are the details of General Body Meetings of the Company held in the last three years:-

‘Neyveli House', No.135, Periyar EVR High Road,

AGM 2013-14 24.09.2014 - 10-00 Hours Kilpauk, Chennai-600 010.
‘Neyveli House', No.135, Periyar EVR High Road,
AGM 2014-15 29.09.2015 - 10-00 Hours Kilpauk, Chennai-600 010.
First Floor, No.8, Mayor Sathyamurthy Road,
EGM 09.07.2016 - 17-00 Hours FSD, Egmore Complex of Food Corporation of India,

Chetpet, Chennai - 600 031.
First Floor, No.8, Mayor Sathyamurthy Road,
AGM 2015-16 12.09.2016 - 16-30 Hours FSD, Egmore Complex of Food Corporation of india,
Chetpet, Chennai-600031.

Special Resolutions

An Extra-Ordinary Meeting of the Company was held on 09.07.2016 and the following Special Resolutions
were passed:

1. Amendment to Article 1.1 - Definitions of Articles of Association of the Company.
2. Increase in the Borrowing limits.
3. Creation of charge by way of Mortgage / Hypothecation of assets of the Company.
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Disclosures
Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Company did not enter into any contracts/ arrangements/transactions with any related
parties which are not atarm’s length basis and no material contracts/arrangements were entered into with
them at arm's length basis. No materially significant related party transactions were entered into that may
have potential conflicts with the interest of the company at large.

None of the Directors / KMPs of the Company are Inter-se related as on 31 03.2017.
Other Disclosures

No penalties, strictures have been imposed on the Company by any Statutory Authorities on any matters
relating to any guidelines issued by the Government during the last three years.

Details of administrative, office and financial expenses for the year under review and for the previous year
are available in the annual accounts.

Means of Communication

Financial statement is being reviewed by the Board represented by both the Promoters. No communication
was made through newspaper/website.

Plant Location
Coal based Thermal Power Plant (2x500 MW) is situated at Harbour Estate, Tuticorin, Tamil Nadu.
Audit Qualification

Itis aiways the Company’s endeavour to present unqualified financial statement.

Training of the Board Members

The Directors on the Board are fully aware of the business module of the Company. No training programme
was undertaken by the Company for the Directors during the year 2018-17.

Whistie Blower Policy

The Company has formulated the Whistle Blower Policy which could provide adequate information to the
employees with regard to implementation of vigilance mechanism in the Company and safeguards against
victimization of employees who avaii of the mechanism.

Compliance

The Company has complied with all the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in DPE Guidelines
on Corporate Governance excepting those non-compliances as observed in the Certificate on Corporate
Governance Report and the Secretarial Audit Report. The reason for non-compliance have been furnished
separately as reply to the observations of the Secretarial Auditor.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Neyveli Dr. SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
Date :02.09.2017 CHAIRMAN
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Ramesh and Ramachandran Annexure-3

Chartered Accountants
(0) 29/3, (N) 39, Viswanathapuram Main Road, Kodambakkam, Chennai-600 024.
Ph:24843667, 24843668, 24843639. E-mail:randrca@gmail.com FRN.002981S.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE
To
The Members,
NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited,

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by NLC Tamil Nadu Power
Limited for the year ended 31* March 2017 as stipulated in the Guidelines of Corporate Governance
notified by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) in respect of non-listed Central Public Sector
Enterprises.

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the guidelines
notified by DPE. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the
company.

3. In our opinion and to the best of information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and Management, we certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Guidelines of Corporate Governance
notified by the DPE except the following:

Clause 3.1.4 of the DPE guidelines stipulates that at least 1/3" of the Board members shouid be

Independent Directors and clause 4 1.1 of the guidelines stipulates that 2/3™ of members of Audit

committee shall be Independent Directors and further Clause 5.1 of the said guidelines states

that the Remuneration Committee should be headed by an independent Director. Consequent to

relinquishment of two independent Directors with effect from 05.08.2014, DPE Guidelines on the

composition of Board of Directors of the Company with regard to Independent Directors, the

composition of Audit Committee with quorum to have minimum two Independent Directors and the
composition of Remuneration Committee as to Independent Directors have not been complied with.

4. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 0029818

Place : Chennai G. SURESH
Partner
Date :12.05.2017 M No. 029366
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« Annexure-4
NLC TAMILNADU POWER LIMITED

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Report

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

Abrief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
Proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects
or programs

The CSR Policy of the Company aims for the betterment of the communities and in the local
areas and area surrounding where it operates, it is proposed to spend around 75% of CSR
Budget within Tamil Nadu and rest 25% anywhere in India. The CSR fund will be created as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e at least two percent (or the percentage may be
fixed by the Govt. from time to time) of the average net profit of the Company made during the
three preceding financial years. The CSR policy and activities are subject to the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE guidelines in this regard. The Broad activities under CSR will
be in consonance with schedule VIl of Companies Act, 2013. The key stake holders namely
State/District Administration/local bodies and other agencies concerned will be regularly consuited
to make the activities meet locai needs. The CSR committee will monitor the implementation of
CSR projects. The CSR poiicy and activities are displayed in the website of the Company.

The Composition of the CSR Committee
The Composition of CSR Committee of the Board of Directors as on 31.03.2017 was as under.
1. Shri. V. Thangapandian - Chairman
2. Shri. Rakesh Kumar - Member
3. Smt. S.Geetha - Member
Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years
Not applicable since the thermal power plant commenced its commercial operation only in the
FY2015-16.
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)
The Company is not required to spend on CSR activities during the year under review as per the
requirements of the Companies Act,2013. However CSR activity in connection with Promoting
Education under Schedule V! of the Companies Act, 2013 was carried out.
Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2016-17 : Rs. 46.93 lakh
a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year . NA

b) Amount unspent, if any . NA
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€)  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

m (2) (3) ) (5) 6) (7) 8)

SIiCSR Project| Sector in Projects or | Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount spent:
Nojor activity which the programs outlay spenton expenditure| Direct or
identified Project is |(1)Localarea or | (hydget) the projects | yp to the | through
covered 2 gt;:]:c;'fy the project or gig‘:g:gs reporting | implementing
i - : ; N
State and zriggrams (1)Direct period agency
District where expenditure
projects or on projects
programs or programs
was under {2)Over heads
taken
1 [Providing of |Promoting Thoothukudi, Rs46.93 [Rs.4693 Rs.46.93 | Direct
Benches & [Education Tamil Nadu lakh lakh Lakh

Desksto  [under

Govt. Schools/subsection i
(600 pairs) of schedule

Vil of the
Companies
Act, 2013.

Total Rs.46.93 Rs.46.93 Rs.46.93
lakh lakh lakh

"Give details of implementing agency- The Company directly procured the items and distributed to the
Government Schools identified by the Chief Education Officer, Thoothukudi.

6. Incase of Company has failed to spend 2%of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof , the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in the Board
Report : Not Applicable

7. Aresponsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.
The Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee is given below:
The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and
policy of the Company.

Sd/- xx xx xx Sd/- xx xx xx
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN /CSR COMMITTEE
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Annexure-5
Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31-03-2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

iy CIN : U40102TN2005G0I058050
i) Registration Date : 18/11/2005
i) Name of the Company . NLC TAMILNADU POWER LIMITED
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company . Government Company
v) Address of the Registered Office and contact details :
Address First Floor, No.8, Mayor Sathyamurthy Road,
FSD, Egmore Complex of Food Corporation of India, Chetpet.
Town / City Chennai
State Tamil Nadu
Pin Code: 600 031
Country Code N
Telephone 044 - 28364613-16
Fax Number 044 - 28364619
Email Address cosec.ntpl@nicindia.com
Website www.ntplpower.com

vi) Whether listed Company . No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any : NA
Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
The business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total tumover of the Company shall be stated:-

Narme and Description
of main products /
services

1 Power 35102 99.10%

NIC Code of the

[+)
Product service % to total turnover of the Company

Sl. No.

. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. Name and Address Holding/ | % of | Applicable
No. of the Company CINGLN Subsidiary/ | shares| section
Associate | held

4 |NLC India Limited, (formerty Neyvell .
Lignite Corporation Limited), First Floor, | L93090TN1956G0I003507 Holding | ggo | 2(46)
No.8, Mayor Sathyamurthy Road, Company
FSD, Egmore Complex of
Food Corporation of India,
Chetpet, Chennai - 600 031.
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IV SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year

No. of Shares held at the

end of

the year

% of Total

Demat Shares

Physical Total

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

% Change
during the
year

A.Promoters

(1} Indian
a} Individual/ HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt {s}

d)Bodies Corp*

196,22,72,727 [196,22,72,727| 100

218,80,42,000

218,80,42,000

100

e) Banks / FI

f)Any Other...

Sub-otal (A} (1)

196.22,72 727 196,.22,72,727| 100

218,80,42,000218,80,42,000

100

(2) Foreign

a) NRlis -Individuals

b} Other-Individuals

¢} Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/F|

e) Any Other...

Sub-totai (A) (2)

196,22,72,727196,22,72727] 100

218,80,42,000218,80,42,000

100

otal share holding of
Promoter (A)= (ANTHAK)

196,22,72,727196,22,72,72 100

218,80,42,000 218,80,42,000

100

* includes 800 equity shares held by nominees on behalf of Promoter

Companies.

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fl
¢} Central Govt
d) State Govt (s}
e} Venture Capital Funds
f) Insurance Companies
g) Fils
h} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
i} Others (specify)
Sub-total {B)(1)
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b Individuals

i}ndividual shareholders
holding nominal Share

capital upto Rs.? lakh
if) Individual shareholders
hoiding nominal share capial
in excess of Rs.1 lakh
¢} Others (specify)
Sub-total {B)(2)
Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B){(1)* (B)2)

0 0 0

0

0

0 0 0

0

0

C.Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0

0

0

Grand Total (A+B+C)

196,22,72,727|196,22,72,72

218,80,42,000{218,80,42,000

100
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the Share holding at the
beginning of the year end of the year % change
S| |Shareholder's % of total |% of Shares % oftotal | % of Shares ':olsgianr;
N No. of Shares | Pledged / No. of Shares | Pledged/ ‘
o Name during the
Shares ofthe |encumbered| Shares ofthe lencumberedto car
Com pany to total shares Ccmpany total shares Y
1 NLC India | 1746422727 89 - 1947357380 89 - -
Limited
2 |Taminadu  |215850,000 11 - 240684620 11 - -
Generationand
Distribution
Corporation
Limited
Total 196,22, 72,727 100 - 2188042000 100 - -

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change)

Sl _ bseg?r:i?nzd;’;gt’h:t;z:r Cumulative Share hoiding during the year
No. Particulars n
No.ofshares | c{;g’gﬁg‘;ﬁf of  No.ofshares (% oftotal shares of the Company|
1. |Atthebeginning | 1962272727 100 196,22,72,727 100
ofthe year
2| Date wise 1,85,49,273 100 1,85,49,273 100
increase/Decrease] (Date-07.05.2016)
in Promoters Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for 20,72,20,000 100 20,72,20,000 100
increase/decrease| (Date—-09.12.2016)
(e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc).
3. |Altheendof 218,80,42,000 100 218,80,42,000 100
the year
* Allotment

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders

of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl
No.

For Each of the Directors
and KMP*

Shareholding at the beginning

of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of
shares

% of totat
shares of the
company

No. of
shares

% of total shares of
the company

Directors

Dr. Sarat Kumar Acharya
At the beginning of the year

100

100

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Share helding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. aliotment / transfer/
bonus / sweat equity efc).

NA

At the end of the year
(ason 31.03.2017)

100

100

Shri. Rakesh Kumar
At the beginning of the year

100

100

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Share hoiding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.q. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc).

NA

At the end of the year
(ason 31.03.2017)

100

100

Shri. V. Thangapandian
At the beginning of the year

100

100

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. aliotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity efc).

NA

At the end of the year
(ason 31.03.2017)

100

100

Shri. P.Selvakumar
At the beginning of the year

100

100

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity efc).

NA

At the end of the year
(ason 31.03.2017)

100

100

* Shares are held in the name of Directors on behalf of NLC India Ltd., the promoter Company.
No KMP is holding any shares in the Company.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Rs.

Particulars exiru%uiaegd rlfggg:its Unfoe;:#;ed Deposits |Total Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i} Principal Amount 4868,62,20,940¢  320,00,00,000 0.00 5188,62,20,940
ii} Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 4868,6220,840 | 320,00,00,000 000 5188,62,20,940
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
-Addition” 0.00 200,00,00,000 0.00 200,00,00,000
‘Reduction 347,68,00.747 0.00 000 347 68,09,747
Net Change (347,68,09,747)|  200,00,00,000 000 (147 68,09,747)
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount* 45195118019 |  520,00,00,000 0.00 5039,51,18,019
il) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,42,93,174 0.00 0.00 1,42,93174
Total (i+ii+iii) 452094,11,193|  520,00,00,000 0.00 5040,94 11,193

* Including working capital

Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager :

s Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
No. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
1. | Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(c) Profits in lieu cf salary
under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. | Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3. | Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4. | Commission '
- as % of profit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- others, specify... 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. | Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

Rs.

Scl)" Particulars of Remuneration - Name of Directors Total Amount
1 |Independent Directors
" | Fee for attending Board/Committee Meetings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Commission . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Q.00
Total (1) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. |Other Non-Executive Directors
- Fee for attending Board/Committee Meetings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Commission ‘ 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
- Others, please specify 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (2) 0.00 0.00 Q.00 0.00 0.00
Total (B)=(1+2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Managerial Remuneration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA NA
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Key Managerial Personnel
A (Sharvasri)
S(IJ' RP:nﬁErL\l::jgrf\ M.Prabhagar|v.N.Baby R.Jayasarathy |S.Sathiyanarayanan| A R Neelakanta Pillai
CEO(fom®1.032017)  CFQ  (Company Secretary|CEQ (from 01.04.2016 [CEO (from 01.05.2016]  Total
l031.03 2017) 10 30.04.2016) 10 28.02.2017)
1.|Gross salary
(@)Salaryasper 3 10,390 16,99,629  15,44,373 763,516 33,22,531(75,40,439
provisions
contained in
Section17(1)
ofthe Income
tax Act, 1961
{b)Value of 3,115 3,823 14,145 0 23,108 44,191
perquisites
u/s 17(2)
Income tax
Act, 1961
(c)Profitsinlieu 0 0 0 0 0 0
of salary
undersection
17(3) Income
tax Act 1961
2. | Stock Option 0 0 0 0 0
3. | Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0 0 0
4 |Commission :
-as % of profit 0 0 0 0 0 0
-others, specify. . 0 0 0 0 0 0
5. | Others, please
specify 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total; 213,505 117,03,45 15,568,518 763,516 33,45,639(75,84,630

. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : NIL.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Neyveli
Date :02.09.2017

Dr. SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
CHAIRMAN
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Annexure-6
R.BALASUBRAMANIAM Door No. 27, Flat No. A2,
B.A.,B.L.,,F.C.S. J" Block, Second Street,
Company Law Consultant Anna Nagar East,
Email ID: balu_comsec@yahoo.com Chennai-600102.
Contact No: 044 - 26269826
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited (CIN: U40102TN2005G0OI1058050) (here
in after called as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my gpinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2017 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and aiso that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2017 according to the provisions of:
0] The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder,
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder,
{(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)
(v)  Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct and External Commercial Borrowings;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Take overs)
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015:
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Cption Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of debt securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit period)

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period) and

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period)

I further report that the Indian Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules made there under are specifically applicable
to the Company.

| further report that the applicable financial laws, such as the Direct and Indirect Tax Laws, have not been
reviewed under my audit as the same falls under the review of statutory audit and by other designated
professionals.

I have also examined the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (Standards).
(i) Guidelines on Corporate Governance as issued by the Department of Public Enterprises applicable to
Central Public Sector Enterprises. (DPE Guidelines).
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, etc., subject to the following observations:

1. The composition of the Board of Directors did not comply with the requirements to have requisite
numbers of Independent Directors as approved by the Ministry of Coal and as prescribed under the
Act & DPE Guidelines.

2. The composition of the Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee did not comply
with the requirements as prescribed under the Act & DPE Guidelines.

3. The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee did not comply with the requirements
as prescribed under the Act.

4. Further, for a part of the year, the requirement to have at least one woman Director on its Board as
prescribed under the Act have not been complied with.

| further report that

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Generally adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent in advance/at a shorter notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting and other business which are not included in the Agenda or circulated at a shorter notice are
considered vide supplementary agenda with the permission of the Chairman and with the consent of a
majority of the Directors present in the meeting.

All the decisions at Board meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

R.Balasubramaniam

Place :Chennai Practicing Company Secretary
Date :12.05.2017 FCS No. 2397
C. P. No. 1340
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Reply to the observations of Secretarial Auditor

Sl

Secretarial Auditor's Observations
(as per Sl. No of the report)

Reply to the Observations of
Secretarial Auditor

The composition of the Board of Directors did
not comply with the requirements to have
requisite numbers of Independent Directors as
approved by the Ministry of Coal and as
prescribed under the Act & DPE Guidelines.

The Company is a Government Company and
appointment of Directors (other than Directors
representing in ex-officio capacity of the promoters
Companies) is being made by the Ministry of Coal,
Government of India, the administrative Ministry.
Hence the power to appoint Independent Directors
including a woman Director vests with Govermment
of india. The Ministry of Coal was apprised of the
requirements and requested for taking necessary
action.

The composition of the Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee did not
comply with the requirements as prescribed
under the Act & DPE Guidelines.

The composition of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee did not comply with
the requirements as prescribed under the Act.

Further, for a part of the year, the requirement to
have at least one woman Director on its Board
as prescribed under the Act have not been
complied with.

In the absence of Independent Directors (including
awoman Director) on the Board the requirements
as prescribed could not be complied with.

Place : Neyveli
Date : 02.09.2017

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
CHAIRMAN
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Annexure-7

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NLC TAMILNADU POWER
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017.

The preparation of financial statements of NLC Tamilnadu Power Limited for year ended 31 March, 2017 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2017.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under
Section 143(8)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of NLC Tamilnadu Power Limited for the year ended
31 March, 2017. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and
Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under
section 143(6)(b) of the Act, which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for
enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related Audit Report:

A. Statement of Profit and Loss
Depreciation and amortization expense {(Note 25) - Rs. 36046.75 lakh
Profit for the period - Rs. 8785.21 lakh
Balance Sheet - Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 2} - Rs. 623897.65 lakh
The full cost of the common assets was not capitalized at the time of commissioning of Unit-l of the plant
and was apportioned equally between Unit-l and Unit-ll of the Plant at the time of commissioning of Unit-il,
two months later in the year 2015-16. The delay in capitalization of common assets, by two months, has
resulted in undercharging of depreciation to the tune of Rs.716.19 Lakh. This has resuited in understatement
of Depreciation and amortization expense, overstatement of Profit and overstatement of Non-Current Assets
by Rs.716.19 lakh.

B. Notes to the Financial Statements
The Company held and transacted Specified Bank Notes and Other Denomination Notes during the
period from 08.11.2016 to 30.12.2016. The disclosure in this regard as per the provisions of the notification
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 30.03.2017 was however, not made in the Financial
Statements. Further, the statutory auditor instead of reporting the non-disclosure in his Audit Report
wrongly stated that the Company did not have any holding or dealings in Specified Banks Notes during
the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016.

for and on behalf of the Comptrolier &
Auditor General of India

Place: Chennai {G.SUDHARMINI})
Date :29.07.2017 Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member Audit Board, Chennai.
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Management's Reply to the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India

A. The Capitalisation of common assets will be reviewed in the current financial year 2017-18 and the
accounting treatment of Depreciation will be carried out with retrospective effect accordingly.

B. The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) deposited in the Bank account of the Company during the
period from 8" November,2016 to 30" December 2016 are furnished hereunder:

inRs.
: Specified Bank Other Denomination
Particulars rF:Jotes (SBN) Notes Total
Closing balance in hand - - -
ason 08.11.2016
(+) Cash Withdrawn - 21,85,000 21,85,000
from bank
(+) Permitted Receipts - 4,860 4,860
{(+) Receipt in SBN* 24,500 - 24,500
{(-) Permitted Payments - 21,55,000 21,55,000
(-) Amount deposited in 24 500 34,860 59,360
Banks
Closing balance in hand - - -
ason 30.12.2016
* The deposits in SBN represents the receipts from 08.11.2016 to 30.12.2016 as given below:
(a) Cash deposited directly by students who underwent “In plant training program” -Rs.13,000.

(b) Guest House receipts are received and deposited by caretaker in the bank Account - Rs.11,500.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place : Neyveli
Date :02.09.2017 Dr. SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
CHAIRMAN
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Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
(0) 29/3, (N) 39, Viswanathapuram Main Road, Kodambakkam, Chennai-600 024.
Ph : 24843667, 24843668, 24843639. E-mail : randrca@gmail.com FRN. 002981S.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of Mis. NLC Tami! Nadu Power Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s. NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited, ("the
Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March, 31 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls and ensuring their operating effectiveness and the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financiai control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

—€&D
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31* March, 2017, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1",
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As per the directions and sub-directions issued by the Comptroiler and Audit General of India, in
pursuance to Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘2, a statement on the matters specifically
so directed.

3. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

@)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e

®

@

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of written representation received from the Directors as on March 31,2017,

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2017, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the cperating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate
reportin "Annexure 3",

With respect to the other matters tc be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations in its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note XI on Contingent Liabilities to the significant accounting
polices forming part of financial statements.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise.

ii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) The Company did not have any holdings or dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from 8" November, 2016 to 30" December, 2016.

For Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn. No. 029818

Place : Chennai G. Suresh

Date :12.05.2017

Partner
Membership Number. 029366
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Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
(0) 29/3, (N) 39, Viswanathapuram Main Road, Kodambakkam, Chennai-600 024.
Ph ' 24843667, 24843668, 24843639. E-mail : randrca@gmail.com FRN. 0029818S.

ANNEXURE ‘1’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent

Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of M/s. NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited on the financial

statements for the year ended 31.03. 2017.

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management
and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of leasehold land, lease
agreement is in the name of the Company.

(i) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year, In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. As informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification carried out during the year.

(i) Asinformed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3 (iii)(c} of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not granted loans, investments, guarantees and securities therefore the question
of complying with Section 185 and 186 of the Act does not arise.

) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed there under.

(v) The Central Government has prescribed the maintenance of cost records u/s 148(1) of the Actin
respect of Electricity industry. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained.

(vii) & The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value
added tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues outstanding with respect to,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty on account of any
dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which the Forum where
Statute dues amount relates dispute is pending

Income Tax Rs. 24364

Act. 1961 Income Tax lakh 201415 CIT (Appeals)

Income Tax Rs. 108.06

Act. 1961 Income Tax lakh 201314 CIT (Appeals)

—E&D
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(viil) According to the information and explanations given us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or borrowings to financial institution(s), bank(s), government(s) or dues to debenture holder(s).

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither raised money
by way of public issue offer. The term loans cbtained by the Company is issued for the purpose for
which it was obtained.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried outin accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company or any fraud on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of any such instance by the management.

(xi) As perthe information and explanations given to us, no managerial remuneration has been paid /
provided for during the year and hence the question of compliance with provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act does not apply.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company, Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) As per the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by the Company with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year and hence paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him.

(xvi) Based on the information and explanation given to us the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

For Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 0298135

Place :Chennai G. Suresh
. 2 Partner
Date  :12.05.2017 Membership Number. 029366
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Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
(0) 2973, (N) 39, Viswanathapuram Main Road, Kodambakkam, Chennai-600 024.
Ph : 24843667, 24843668, 24843639. E-mail : randrca@gmail.com FRN. 002981S.

ANNEXURE -’2° TO OUR INDEPENDANT AUDITOR’S REPORT AS AT EVEN DATE

Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of M/s.NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31.03.2017

Sub - Directions under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Whether the Company has clear title/lease deeds for freehold and leasehoid land respectively? If not,
please state the area of freehold and leasehold land for which the title/lease deeds are not available?

The leasehold property is in the name of the Company.

2. Whether there are any cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons therecf
and the amountinvolved?

There were no cases of waiver / write off of debt / loans and interest during the year
under audit.

3. Whether proper records are maintained for inventories lying with third parties & assets received as
gift’grant(s) from the Government or other authorities.

There are no inventories lying with third parties and no assets received as gift/grant(s)
from Government or other authorities.

For Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration No. 029815

Place: Chennai G. Suresh

Date :12.05.2017 Partner .
Membership Number. 029366
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Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
(O) 29/3, (N) 39, Viswanathapuram Main Road, Kodambakkam, Chennai-600 024.
Ph : 24843667, 24843668, 24843639. E-mail : randrca@gmail.com FRN. 0029818S.

ANNEXURE ‘3' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of M/s.NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31.03.2017
Para 1 - Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. NLC Tamil Nadu Power
Limited (“the Company”) as at 31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Para 2 - Management’s Responsibility of internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
control that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Para 3 - Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance note’) and the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an auditof internal financial controls,
both issued by the ICA!. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material aspects.

Our audit involves, performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's interna! financial controls system over financial reporting.

Para 4 - Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiai Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial contral over financia! reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Para 5 - Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as atMarch 31,2017 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on audit of internal
Financial Controls issued by the ICA!l

For Ramesh and Ramachandran
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 0298185

‘ . G. Suresh
Place : Chennai Partner
Date :12.05.2017 Membership Number. 029366
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NTPL
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315TOF MARCH, 2017 (Rs.in lakh)
Sl. : Note As al As at
NG, Particulars No. 31*March 2016 | 1% April 2015
ASSETS
| | 1. Non-Current Assets
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment | 2 652,020.80 7,272.33
(b) Capital Work-in-progress 3 7,795.36 655,813.88
(c) Other Intangible Assets 4 - -
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 5 8,469.46 -
(e) Other Non Current Assets 6 1,129.05 1,100.86
2. Current Assets
{a) Inventories 7 21,428.31 -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 72,696.17 -
(i) Cash and cash equivaients 9 228.42 956.7€
(iil)Other Bank balances 10 - 10,642.00
(iv)Other Current Assets 1 7,134.75 6,099.83
TOTAL 770,802.32 681,885.68
Il | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 196,227.27 169,440.00
{(b) Other Equity 13 -16,007.20 12,010.88
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 388,446.00 321,830.00
2 Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 84,165.21 98,052.00
(it) Trade payables 16 20,208.47 -
{iity Other financial liabilities 17 46,251.00 21,870.00
(b) Other current liabilities 18 51,508.21 58,554.57
{c) Provisions 19 0.8 103.36 128.23
TOTAL 802,905.42|  770,902.32 681,885.68
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Fmanc:al Statements Refer Note No.1.
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integrai part of the balance sheet.
Forand on behalf of the Board
R.JAYASARATHY V.N. BABU RAKESHKUMAR SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN

Place : Chennai Date: 12.05.2017

As per our report of even date attached.
For Ramesh and Ramachandran,
Chartered Accountants,

FirmRegn. No. 0029815

GSuresh

Partner

M. No. 029366

Place : Chennai Date: 12.05.2017
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315" OF MARCH, 2017 (Rs. in lakh)

Sl. . Note For the year ended
No Particulars No. 31% March 2016
i Revenue From Operations 20 12247365
I | Other Income 21 84641
M | TOTALINCOME (I+l]) 12312006
IV | EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 22 8092017
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade -
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress -
Excise Duty 914
Employee benefits expense 23 363720
Finance costs 24 3173110
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 2686176
Other expenses 26 436322
TOTAL EXPENSES (IV) 147,592.58
V | Profit/(loss) before tax (I-1V) (2447252)
VI | Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
MAT Credit Entittlement
(2} Deferred tax (8.469.46)
Total Tax Expenses (VI) (8469.46)
VIl | Profit/i{loss) for the period (V-VI) (16,003.06)
VIl | Other Comprehensive Income
A () ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
IX | Total Conmprehensive Incomre fozr the pericd (MI+\VI(Cormprising
Profit (Loss) and Other Conrprehensive Income for the period) (16,003.06)
X | Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation)
(1) Basic (Rs) (0.85)
(2) Diluted (Rs.) (0.85)

The Note referred to above and the Significant Accounting Policies annexed form an integral part of the Statement of
Profitand Loss
Forand on behalf ¢f the Board

R. JAYASARATHY V.N.BABU RAKESHKUMAR SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
COMPANY SECRETARY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN
Place : Chennai Date: 12.05.2017

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in cur report of even date.
ForRameshand Ramachandran,

Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No. 002981S

G.Suresh

Partner

M. No. 029366

Place : Chennai Date: 12.05.2017
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NTPL
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 of March, 2017 (Rs.in lakh)
. Ear the year: ended| For the year ended
Particulars 31% March 2017 | 31%March 2016
A. 8/\33 Engl\{VB;I;gn#aSPERATING ACTIVITIES (24,472.53)
(u% Adjustments for
Add - Depreciation 26,887 44
Finance Expenses {(Considered separately) 4591571
Less: Interest Income (Considered separately) (65727)
(iii) Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 4777335
{iv) Working Capital Changes
[ncrease in Inventory (21,428.31)
Increase in Trade Receivables (7269.17)
{ncrease in other-Non-Current Assets
Increase in other Current Assets (157892)
Increase in Current Liabilities 26.059.88
Increase in Trade Payables 19:655.37
(v) Cash flow before taxes and extra-ordinary items (1,314.80)
(vi) Extra-ordinary items -
(vii)Taxes Paid .
Net Cash flow from operations (1,31480)
B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ’
(i) Purchase of Plant, Property & Equipment (671,635.91)
(i) Change in Capital Work-in-Progress 648,018.52
(iii) Interest Income Received 557.27
Net Cash flow from investing activities {23,060.12)
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
|) Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 66,616.00
iy Increse/(Decrease) in Short term Borrowings (13,886.79)
(iiiy Issue of Equity Shares 26,787.27
(iv) Transfer of Share Application money pending Allotment to share capitai {12,015.00)
(v) Interest Paid {45915.71)
(vi) Repayment of long term liabilities {9,102.97)
(vii)Decrease in long term loans & advances 52177
Net Cash flow from financing activities 13,004.57
Net Cash increase / (decrease) in Cash and Cash Activities {11370.35)
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 11598.78
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the end of the year 228.42
Note: () indicates cash outflow.
For and on behalf of the Board
R.JAYASARATHY V.N.BABU RAKESHKUMAR SARAT KUMAR ACHARYA
COMPANY SECRETARY  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR CHAIRMAN
Place : Chennai Date: 12.05.2017

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For Ramesh and Ramachandran,

Chartered Accountants,

Firm Regn. No. 0029818

GSuresh

Partner

M. No. 029366

Place : Chennai e
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of changes in Equity for the period ended 31% of March, 2017

A. Equity Share Capital (Rs.in lakh)

Balance at the beginning of Changes in equity share capital Balance at the end of the
the period during the year reporting period

1,96,227.27 22,576.93 2,18,804.20

B. Other Equity (Rs.in lakh)

Share Equity Dett | EQuity Exchange | Other
appli |Component Reserves and Surplus instuments S (Effective diferences|tems off oo
cation | of Com thiough | MENtS |\ norign | Reval ontrans | other | ooty
money | pound |Capita #es| Other other |throughis each | uation lating the |Compre | [~ ol g
pending| financial | poce Pramium FEhes| Retained | compre other |“pw | Surplus financial | hensive| "¢y re
gilotment instrument ves (spedify| Earnings hensive compre Hedge sflat!ement income | ot

nature) income {hensive of atoreign| (specify
income Opera‘ion | nature)

Balance
at the
beginning
ofthe
reporting
period

. R R . - [eoo7 19 - - - - - - - [-16007.1%

Changes

in accounting
palicy or
prior period
errors

- - - - - tret02| - - - - - - - | -761.02

Restated
balance at
the begining| - - - - - |-1e7sB 2% - - - - - - - |-16768.21
of the
repoiting
period
Total
Comprehen | . - - - - |eres21| - - - - - - - | 878521
sive Income
for the year

Dividend - - - - - o - - - . . _ - o}

Transferto
Retained

R - - . - - | 878521 - - - - - - - 8785.21
arning

Any other
changes

(to be - - - - - - - - - - - - -
specified)

Balance at

the end of
the Report - N - - - ]-7983.00 - - - - - - - -7983.00

ing Period
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of changes in Equity for the period ended 31% of March, 2016

A. Equity Share Capital

(Rs.in lakh)

Balance at the beginning
the pericd

of

Charges in equity share capital
during the year

Balance at the end of the
reperting period

1,69,440.00

26,787.27

1,96,227.27

B. Other Equity

{Rs.inlakh)

Share Equity

appli |{Component
cation | of Com
money pound
pending| financial
allotment instrument

Reserves and Surpius |, instru

Equity

Rese
rves

through| ments ion
Capital Seauriied Other other |through gf%tash
Premi Resnes

Retained] compre| other | "mow
(spedfy] Earnings| hensive| compre Hedge
nature) income | hensive
income

Exchange| Cther
differences|items of
onfrans | other
Reval 1ang the [Compre
uvation| fnancial | hensive
Surplus| siatement | income

ofaforeigni (specify
Operation | nature)

Money
received
against Total
share
warrant

Balance
at the

beginning - -
of therepor
ting period

Change

in according
policy or
prior period
errors

- - - - 0.00

Restated
balance at
the beginning| - -
of the repor|
ting period

Total
Comprehen - -
sive Income
for the year

- |-16003.06 - B -

- - - - -16003.06

Dividend

Transferto
Retained _ _
Eaming

- |-16003.08 - - -

- - - - -16003.06

Any other
change

(to be - -
specified)

Balance at
the end of
the Report
ing Period

- [-16007.17 - - -

- - - - -16007.17
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NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET
2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ‘
The following table presents the changes in property, plant & equipment during the year ended March 31, 2017

{Rs.in lakh
Gross Cost Depreciation Net Value

inti As at  |Additions/{Deletions/[ : Asat:| Asat | Withdraw odsa | Asat
Description 31"March [Transfers | Transfer/ | - hi31%March | als/Trans| FOrthe ‘| 31#March

2018 Adit |- 2016 | fersiagit] YR |- | 2018
Lease Hold Land  [5,028.93 -l - 311,452.80 - 167631 13,.576.13
Buildings 2,954 33 62.41 - 377.05] (3.01) 87.57 2,577.28
Electrical Installations| 366.69] 61.34| - 28.03) 111.32 - 20.55 8| 25537
Water Supply 66.20 - | 7e6:200 17.76] - 3.14 48.44
Plant & Machinery  [57163088|7.77934| -  |87941022|2656727| (61.85)(35.717.09 l6.45,063.61
Furniture & Equipment| 544.95| 77.06| - [.B22.00| 108.25| - 39.50 436.70
Vehicles 89.32| 812 - | 97.44| 2605 - 11.07 63.27

Assets Costing o :

Rs.5000/- and below 8§94, 0.18 - }ii9.42)  8.94 - 0.18} - _-‘:'9,-:_ _ ;
Total 6,80,690.24/7,988.44 - 6,85,678.68/2,86,69.44| (64.86)| 36,046.73[64,781.03]65,23,897.6516,52,020.80
Previous year 9,054.31)6715084 | 3.91 [6.80,690.24] 1,781.98 - 26,887.45[28,669.44]6,52,02080| 7,272.34

* . Lease Hold Land is being amortised over the lease pericd

The following table presents the changes in property, plant & equipment during the year ended March 31, 2016

(Rs.in lakh)
Gross Cost Depreciation Net Value

D inti Asat | Additions/ [Deletions![ = Asaty Asat | Withdraw = A As at

escription 1#April | Transfers | Transfer! | 3{*March| 1*April | als/Trans Forthe | 1 April

2015 Adit | 20161 2015 | fers/Adit] YU | 2015
Lease Hold Land  [5.02883 | - 15,028.93[1,28517) - 167.63}1, 13]3,743.76
Buildings 2,950.42 3.91 - :331290.43 - 86.62 {2.659.99
Electrical Installations| 370.60 -| 3.9 | 91.96f - 19.36 278.64
Water Supply 66.20 - 14.62 - 3.14 51.58
Plant & Machinery 42.85|6715380 - 2.0t - 2656526 40.84
Furniture & Equipment| 497.17] 47.78 - 73.02 - 35.23 42415
Vehicles 89.32 - 15.95 - 10.10 73.37

Assets Costing

Rs.5000/- and below 8.84) 010 - 8.84| - 0.10 -
Tota! 9.054.33[67163982| 3.91 |6,80,690.24( 1,782.00 - 26,887.44 |2 {16 | 7,272.33
Previous year 8,763.56| 30675 15.98 | 9,08433[ 1,427.18] 13.99 368.79] 1,781.99. 7,2 -

* - Lease Hold Land is being amortised over the lease pericd

11" Annual Report 2016 - 2017



@NLC TAMILNADU POWER LIMITED

NTPL

NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET
3. CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS - CWIP

{Rs. in lakh)

Particulars

: As at
1 31 March 20186

As at
1% April 2015

Capital Work-in-Progress

7,795.36

6,56813.88

Total

7,795.36

6,55,813.88

CWIP includes Value of Supply, Erection etc.,
of following major Package Contracts:

a) Construction of Residential Quarters - Phase Il -
RPP Infra Projects

b) Construction Roads & Drains - Phase |l -
RPP tnfra Projects

c) Construction of Non Residential Buiidings -
Abhiram Inra Projects

d) Construction of Air Quality Monitoring Station -
Environment SA India

e) Construction of Canteen Building and Time Cffice -
Ashok Vardhana

f) Supplying & Laying of pipeline for service water-
AR Enterprise

g) Effluent Treatment Plant - Nevco Engineers

h) Sewage Treatment Plant - Ensys Technologies

i) Construction of Maintenance Shed -
Motherland Builders

j) Construction of Indoor Shuttle Court -
Motherland Buiiders

k} Construction of RCC Drain - Motherland Builders

Iy Construction of CISF Barracks - Srico Projects

m) Construction of Watch Towers - Jeya Engineering

n) Modification of Warehouse

0) Misc Civil Works such as Approach Roads, etc

p) Construction, Modification, Electrification of Sheds,
Stores, etc

4. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the changes in other intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2017

(Rs. in lakh)
Gross Cost Depreciation NetValue
Description Asat |Additons/ |Deletions/ | Asat  [Wihdawds/ 1 Asat
31%March 2016 Tenstes | 2757 ThsteMarh 2018| e |Forte 1 314 arch 2016
Adt. AL | Year P :
Computer
Software 1411 - 14.11 - -
Total 1411 - 1411 - - -
Previous Year| 1318 0 - 1318 - 0% | -

11" Annual Report 2016 - 2017




@ NLC TAMILNADU POWER LIMITED

NTPL

NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET
4. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The following table presents the changes in other intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2016 { Rs.inlakh)

Gross Cost Depreciation NetValue

Description Asal  |Additions [Deletions/ frnpgtae Tt gy |Wihdavals] S et at | psat

. Transfer/ Ch Transfer |Fortheqa s n 0 i :

1% Apil 2015 | Tranfers | Ay | TXAPI2D15 | CAgt | v 17 March 2016(31° N 1 Agril 2015
Computer
Software 141 - 141N
Total 1411 - - 1M N } e .
Previous Year| 1318 | 0@ o 1318 - o owam i :
5. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (Net) ( Rs. in lakh)
As at As at

Particulars 319 March 2016 | 1% Aprl 2015

Deferred Tax Asset

- relating to Income Tax Loss & other Allowances 80,696.61 -
Less: Deferred Tax Liability
- relating to temporary difference in depreciation 72,227.15 -
Total G 3 726 62 8,469.46 -
COMPUTATION OF TEMPORARY DIFFERENCE AND DEFERRED TAX
(Ind AS 12- Balance Sheet Approach) (Rs.in lakh)
Particulars ying Amount Tax base Tgmporary
as on 31 03,2017 as on 31.03.2017|  Difference
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment ' 3,83614.04 24028360
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5017.88 -
(c) Inventories 5227585 -
(d) Tradereceivables 1,04,33540 -
(e} Cash and cash equivalents 445,95 -
() Other Bank balances - -
(9) Short Term Loans and Advances 1297582 -
(h) Receivable towards Income Tax 178.02

5588429 | 240,283.60
349508%6 -

Total Assets :‘

(@) Term Loans - Secured
(b) Borrowings - Short Term Borrowings -
5791544 -

i) Secured Loan
iy Unsecured Loan 52,000.00 -
(¢} Sundry Creditors for DM Water Sales 198 -
(d) Expenses due to NLCIL 37317 -
(e) Creditors for revenue Work 53478.89 -
(f) Other financial liabilities - Current maturities for long
term loans - -
i) Rupee Term Loan - | 11,880.74 -
i) Rupee Term Loan - |i 3256105 -
(g} Statutory payables 302.41 -
(h) Payabie on Purchase of Fixed Assets 23,188.81 -
(i) Advance for sale of fly ash 12922 -
(i) Amountwithheld from contractors 3,956.14 -
(k) Others b/f 8,582.36 -
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NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET

( Rs.in lakh)

11" Annual Report 2016 - 2017

()  Provisions e - -
i) Provision for short term leave benefits - 4402
ii) Provision for Gratuity - 7606
Total Liabilities 5,91,964.16 120.08
VRS 105.06 105.06
(a) Share Capital 2,18,804.20 -
(b) Retained Earnings -7,983.02 -
Total Liabilities Equity| - 2 40, 2,10,821.18 -
() Deferred tax Liability 2,40,283.60 @ 34.608% 83,157.35
(ll) Deferred tax Asset
Deferred tax asset 120.08 @ 34.608% 4156
VRS 105.06 @ 34.608% 36.36
Tax Loss - Deferred Tax Asset 2,50,826.54@ 34.608% 86,806.05  86,883.97
() Net Deferred Tax Assetas on 31.03.2017 3,726.62
Less: Opening Deferred Tax Asset 8.469.46 846946
(IV) Deferred Taxto be charged in ProfitandLoss Alc 4,742.84
6. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS {Rs.in lakh)
. A A
Particulars Mekach 2016 | _1*Apii 2015
tAdvance to VOC Port Trust 1,001.38 1,001.38
Receivable towards Income Tax 127.68 99.48
MAT Credit Entittlement - -
Total 1,129.06 1,100.86
7. INVENTORIES . (RsA. in lakh)
Particulars e setr | sevegonts | 1Asiants
Coal oo 2484648 12,146.77 -
Coal in transit 5.814.14 8,534.86
Fuel Qil - 551.47 746.68
Stores & Spares -
Total 21,428.31 -
8. TRADE RECEIVABLES { Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Sah a0t | 1Apid01s
IUnsecured, considered good - outstanding less than six months 7269617 -
Unsecured, considered good - outstanding for mere than six months -
Total 72,696.17 -
9. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS { Rs. in lakh)
Particulars As at 31 March 2097 | As at 31% March 2016{ As at 1% April 2015
(A) With Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts
Canara Bank, Kilpauk, Chennai 0.33 0.33
Bank of India, Tuticorin 1.00 74968
Bank of india, Tuticorin - E-Freight 142.11 48.00
Bank of Barcda, Tuticorin 220 0.10
State Bank of India, Tuticorin 82.76 158.66
(B) Others 228.40 956.77
Stamps on hand 0.02 0.01
Total 228.42 956.78
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NTPL

Notes to Balance Sheet

10. OTHER BANK BALANCES (Rs.in lakh)
. s Tabii, As a As at
Particulars 344 Nﬁic?lt 2017 314 Manch 2018 19 April 2015
Short Term Deposit with Banks S | - 8,642.00
Canara Bank, Neyveli ' - 2,000.00
Bank of India, Tuticorin Total |nina s - 10,642.00
11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Ri.in lakh)
Particulars 318 Mp;ic%tzma 19 ApsnlaZtO15
Unsecured considered good
Advances recoverable in cash orin kind or for value
to be received 6341 664.57
Advance for Capital Goeds 480.35 1,002.12
Prepaid expenses 44.85 -
Advance to TTPS for Coal diversion - 3,773.80
Advance for purchase of Coal j 5,287.60 409.51
Advance for purchase of Fuel Qil : 686.54 249.83
Total |i0 0 7134.75 6,099.83

Advance for Capital Goods is classified as Short Term Loans and Advancas as the company is sure of

its adjustment within a period of twelve months

12. SHARE CAPITAL (Rs.in lakh)
Particulars 31“ 1\41Aasn:aht 2017 395 Mp;c?lt2016 g8 Ap;ila2t015
{a) Authorised :
250,00,00,000 Equlty Share of Rs.10/- each 2’50000.00 2,50'00000 2-50|00000
(b) Issued , Subscribed and Paid up _:
218,80,42,000 Equity Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 2 18 804 20 1,96,227.27 | 1,69,440.00

a) The equity shares are the only class of share capital having a par value of Rs.10/- per share
b) Equity shares carry voting rights proporticnate teo the paid up value per share.
¢) During the year, the Company issued 22,57,69,273 equity shares of Rs.10/- each, parri-passu with

existing shares

Reconciliation of No. of Shares in the beginning and at the end of the year including shareholders
holding more than 5% of the shares of the company

(a) Number cf Shares at the beginning of 2016-17

(ih NLC India Ltd., - 89% 50,80,16,000(131,00,80,000
(i) TANGEDCO -11% 18,63,84,000{ 16,19,20,000
Total |: :1169,44,00,0001147,20,00,000
(b) Number of Shares Allotted during 2016-17 o :
(i) NLC India Ltd., 23,84,06,727] 19,79,36,000
(i) TANGEDCO 2,94,66,000| 2,44,64,000
Total 26,78,72,727| 22,24,00,000
{¢) Number of Shares at the end of 2016-17
(i) NLC India Ltd., - 89% -|174,64,22,7271150,80,16,000
(i) TANGEDCO -11% 6.84,620: 21,58 50,000| 18,63,84,000
Total | 218,80,42,000 (196,22,72,727 |169,44,00,000
49
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13. OTHER EQUITY (Rs.in lakh)
Particulars T e
As at the beginning of the year @12) (4.12)
Profit for the year (16,003.08) 0.00
Share Application Money pending for allotment - 12,015.00
As at the end of the year (16,007.20) 12,010.88

The Retained Earnings at the beginning of the year is restated on prior period expenses as per Ind AS

(Note 13 a)
Retained Earnings (Including Ind AS Transition Reserve)

13(a). OTHER EQUITY - RETAINED EARNINGS
Reccnciliaticn of Equity from erstwhile GAAP to Ind AS is stated as under

{Rs.in lakh)
st

Particulars AZSO%B(% dM,fégh
Profit and loss account - Opening Balance (IGAAP - April 1, 2015) (4.12)
Add : Profit/(Loss) for the period -
Amount available for appropriation (4.12)
Appropriations
Transfer to/from Interest Different Fund Reserve -
Transfer to Bond Redemption Reserve -
Transfer to General Reserve -
Transfer to Contingency Reserve -
Transfer to PRMA Reserve Fund -
Interim Dividend -
Tax on Interim Dividend -
Proposed Final Dividend -
Tax on Proposed Final Dividend -
Transfer of carrying amount of fixed assets whose useful life served before
01-04-2014 tc general reserve -
Profit and loss account - Closing Balance (IGAAP - April 1, 2015) (4.12)
Ind AS adjustments (as at April 1, 2015) -
Retained Earnings {Ind AS - April 1, 2015) (4.12)
Profit/Loss for the period 2015-16 (16,003.08)
Amount available for appropriation (16,007.20)
Appropriations:
Profit and loss account - Balance before Ind AS adjustments for the period
2015-2016 (16,007.20)
Ind AS adjustments (for the period April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016)
Prior pericd Expenses
- Consumption of Fuel Oil {696.25)
- Depreciaticn on Buildings (2.92)
- Depreciation on Plant & Machinery (61.85)
Total Ind AS adjustments (for the period April 1, 2015 tc March 31, 2016) (761.02)
Retained Earnings (Ind AS - March 31, 2016) {16,768.22)
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Notes to Balance Sheet .
14. LONG TERM BORROWINGS -SECURED (Rs.in lakh)

- cniohgrals s As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2017 | 31*March2016 | 1 April 2015

Term Loans from Banks:-
(i) Bank of Baroda Consortium of Banks
(i) Bank of India Consortium of Banks
(iii) Power Finance Corporation Ltd

- Rupee Term Loan - |

- Rupee Term Loan - li

2,12,500.00 23750000
74,960.00 84,330.00

1,00,986.00 -

Total 3,88,446.00; 3,21,830.00

a) Alithe above Term Loans is secured by pari-passu charge on project fixed assets financed.
b} Repayment of Loan:-

(i) Power Finance Corporation Ltd - Rupee Term Loan-I of Rs.1184.92 crore:- Twenty (20) equal
half-yearly installments from January 2016.and the rate of interest on the loan is 9.94%.

(i) Power Finance Corporation Ltd - Loan-ll, Rupee Term Loan of Rs.2500 crore from Bank of Baroda
Consortium has been taken over during the financial year with interest rate of 9.57% and Rupee
term loan of Rs.937 crore from Bank of india Consortium has been taken over during the financial
year with interest rate of 8.04%. Repayable in Nineteen (19) half yearly installments from October 2016.

15. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS (Rs.in lakh)

As at As at
31 March 2016 1% April 2015

Particulars

Secured
Loans repayable on demand from Banks:
Working capital Loan with Bank of India
Unsecured
Short term loan from NLC India Ltd - Unsecured
- Loan |
- Loan |l

52,165.21 0.00

32,000.00 98,052.00

84,165.21 $8,052.00

(i) Bank of India Working Capital loan: - Secured by exclusive first charge on book debts, operating
cash flows, receivables, including stock of coal, fuel, etc. and all other current assets, commission,
revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising present & future relating to the project and the rate
of interest is 8.35%.

Total

(i) NLC India Ltd - Short term loan } of Rs.500.00 crore - Towards meeting the working capital requirements
and Repayable within 365 days from the date of drawl. The rate of interest on the loan is 8.35%.

(i) NLC India Ltd - Short term loan Il of Rs.1000.00 crore - Towards meeting the cash flowrequirements
and Repayable within 365 days from the date of drawl. The rate of interest on the loan is 8.35%.

16. TRADE PAYABLES (Rs.in lakh)
i L oooAstatiii e As a As at
Particulars 314 March 2017 31%March2016 | 1*April 2015
Sundry Creditors 3,854.04- 20,208.47 0.00
Total | . 53,854.04 20,208.47 0.00
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES -CURRENT MATURITIES FOR LONG TERM LOANS (Rs.in lakh)
Particulars s at 31e M@?oﬁtzom tst A’A;sr"aztow
Current maturities of Long term loan:
Bank of Baroda Consortium Rupee Term Loan 2500000| 12,500.00
Bank of India Consortium Rupee Term Loan 9,370.00 9,370.00
Power Finance Corporation Ltd Term Loan - 0.00
- Rupee Term Loan - | 11,881.00
- Rupee Term Loan - Il -
Total | 46,251.00f 21,870.00
18. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs.in lakh)
. As at
Particulars 31aM25rc?]t2015 1 April 2015
Statutory payable 2216.37 600.49
Payable on Purchase of Fixed Assets 44.088.35 53,191.32
Advance for sale of fly ash 84.60 -
Amount withheld from contractors 3,904.93 3,926 .48
Coal received from TTPS on returnable basis 1,087.04 -
Others 126.82 836.28
Total 51,508.21 58,554.57
19. PROVISIONS (Rs.inlakh)
. As at
Particulars seMarchaote | 1%Aptt 2015
Provision for short term leave benefits 103.36 57.36
Provision for Gratuity - 70.87
Total 103.36 128.23
NOTES TO STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
20. REVENUE FROM QPERATIONS (Rs.inlakh)
Particulars e el
Power Sales 12181702
Sale of Infirm Power 461043
Sale of Fly Ash (including Excise Duty) 779.77
Sale of DM Water 0.00
1,27,207.22
| ess: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress 4,733.57
Total 1,22,473.65

a. Unit-1 has started its commerciai operation from 18" June, 2015 and Unit-2 from 29" August,2015.
b. Sale of Power is accounted for based on the interim tariff order dated 13.10.2015 granted by the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) under the Tarrif Regulations 2014-19 from the date

of Commercial Operation Declaration (COD) of Unit l and |l to 31.03.2017.

Beneficiaries are billed in accordance with the said interim tariff order. Final Tariff order proceedings

under progress by CERC.

c. Fly ash produced during the year has been fully utilised in the same year. Hence, proceeds from the fly
ash sale has been classified as income and not transferred to ‘Fly ash utilisation reserve fund’ in terms
of provisions of gazette notification dated 3 November, 2009 issued by Ministry of Environment and

Forests, Government of India.
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NOTES TO STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

21. OTHER INCOME

(Rs.in lakh)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Interest on Bank Deposits
Interest from Others

Surcharge from Beneficiaries
Rent Recovered

Liquidated Damages Recovered
Foreign Exchange Fluctutation
Others

Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress

Total|

276.52
280.75
42908
1473
7.65
0.00
17.96

1,026.69
380.28

646.41

Foreign Exchange Income arises on account of restatement of foreign currency liability against the Import

Coal Supply.
22. FUEL (Rs.in lakh)
Particutars R R
Coal Consumption 1,83177.82.. 87,921.39
Qil Consumption ' & 7555.39
95,476.78
Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress Accounts 14 486.61
80,990.17
OPENING STOCK
Raw Material
Coal 0.00
Oil 0.00
0.00
Add: PURCHASES
Raw Material
Coal 1,00,068.15
Oil 8,302.07
1,08,370.22
Less: CLOSING STOCK
Raw Material
Coal 12,146.77
oil 746.68
12,893.45
Less: Transfer to Capital Expenditure Accounts
Coal 9,955.74
Oil 4530.87
14,486.61
Cost of Material consumed
Coal 77,965.65
oil 3,024.52
i5 80,990.17
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23. EMPLOYEES' BENEFIT EXPENSES {Rs.in lakh)
. For the year ended
Particulars 31% March 2016
Salaries, Wages and incentives 4,332.65
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 630.73
Gratuity 0.00
Welfare Expenses 160.85
5,124.23
Less:Transferred to Capital Work in Progress 1.487.03
Total 3,637.20
24. FINANCE COST {Rs.in lakh)
. For the year ended
Particulars 315 March 2015
Interest on Term Loan 44 821.78
Interest on Working capital 1,093.93
45915.71
Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress Accounts 14.184.61
Total 31,731.10
25. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES (Rs.in lakh)
. For the year ended
Particulars 312 March 2016
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 26,887.45
Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress Accounts 25.7Q
Total 26,861.75
26. OTHER EXPENSES {Rs.in lakh)
. For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2016
Consumption of Stores and Spares 189.20
SRLDC Deviation charges 2,275.46
Transitand Handling loss 100.11
License fee, Rates and taxes 41.80
Repairs and Maintenance
-Piant and Machinery 7.69
-Others 1,234.28
Insurance 116.96
Electricty Charges 127.67
Water Charges 45.75
Payments to Auditors
-Audit Fees 8.31
-Other Certification Fees 0.61
-Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 1.50
Professional Charges 14.37
Travelling expenses 166.44
Advertisement 48.18
Legal Expenses 0.45
Training expenses 15.15
Interest to Beneficiaries 29855
Service charge on Fly Ash Sale 12.90
Security & Central industrial Security Force expenses 22067
Bank Charges (includes Upfront fee, Commission) 78.68
Corporate Social Responsibiiity expenses 24.30
Miscellaneous expenses 134.29
5,163.32
Less: Transferred to Capital Work in Progress Accounts : 800.10
Total}: 4.363.22
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2017

I. Company Overview

NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited (‘NTPL or the Company”), a company domiciled in India, and is the
joint venture between NLC India Limited (NLC), a Government of India Enterprise and Tamil Nadu
Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited (TANGEDCO), a Government of Tamil Nadu Enterprise
incorporated in the year 2005 with Equity participation in the ratio of 89:11 respectively, NTPL has its
registered office at First floor No.8, Mayor Sathyamurthy Road, FSD, Egmore Complex of Food Corporation
of India, Chennai - 600 031.

The Company has implemented 2 X 500 MW Coal based power plant at Tuticorin, Tamii Nadu with main
activity of generation of electricity.

. Basis of preparation

a) Compliance with Ind AS:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘the MCA'), Government of India, in exercise of the powers conferred by
Section 133 read with Section 469 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act') and sub section 1 of section
210A of the companies Act, 1956 (“the erstwhile Act”) in consultation with National Advisory Committee
on Accounting Standards vide G.S.R 111(E) dated February 15, 2015 notified rules called Companies
(Indian Accounting Stadards) Rules, 2015 effective April 1, 2015. The MCA vide notification G.5.R. 365
(E) dated March 30, 2016 issued certain amendments to Ind AS vide Companies {indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The MCAvide notification G S.R 404(E) dated April €, 2016 introduced
amendments to Schedule 11l of the Act requiring companies to prepare the financial statements in
compliance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.

Pursuant to the above rules framed by MCA, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first set of financial statement
the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS, These financial statements being the firstind AS
financial statements,are covered by the Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of India Accounting Standards
(‘indAS 101"). NTPL has applied ind AS 101 in making the transition to Ind AS, with Aprit 1, 2015 as the
date of transition to Ind AS, Refer Note No 13a Financial Statements for an explanation of how the
transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows.

b) Historical Cost Convention:
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
* Certain financial assets and liabilities have been measured at fair value.
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {'INR') and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated.
c) Exemptions availed in transition to ind AS:
NTPL has applied for certain mandatory and optional exemptions from full retrospective application

of Ind AS.
L 55
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The exceptions and exemptions availed by under Ind AS 101 are discussed under Note below:

Property, Plant and Equipment:

On transition to Ind AS, NTPL has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Property,
Plant & Equipment recognized as at 01 April, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP & use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the Property, Plant & Equipment.

Functional and Presentation Currency;

Items included in financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”). Indian rupee is the
functional currency of the Company.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company's presentation currency.
Allfinancial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded up to the nearest lakhs except
where otherwise indicated. '

IV. Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of the company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments:

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

a) Classification of land taken on lease

b) As per Ind AS 17, a finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

NTPL is having a long term lease agreement on Land with V.O.Chidambaranar Port Trust for a period of
30 years and the rewards incidental to ownership of the Land has not been transferred to NLC Tamil Nadu
Power Limited and hence treated as operating lease. Leasehold Land has been utilised for the purpose
of setting up the plant and employees quarters. Hence, identified and amortised over the leasehold period.

Significant accounting policies
i. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plantand equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in profit and loss.
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Cost of acquisition is inclusive of taxes, duties, freight, installation allocated incidental expenditure during
construction/acquisition and necessary adjustments in the year of final settlement.

Leases

NTPL is having a long term lease agreement of Land with V.O.Chidambaranar Port Trust for a period of 30
years which has been considered as operating lease and Leasehold Land has been utilized for the purpose
of setting up the plant and employees quarters. Hence, identified and amortised over the leasehold period.

Capital work-in-progress

Administration and general overhead expenses attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment
incurred till they are ready for their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis to the
cost of related assets.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure wili flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognized in the statement
of profit and loss. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the current year is as follows:

Description of Assets

Basis

i. Assets of Thermal Power Stafions excluding
vehicles

The Company follows the provisions of the Electricity
Act,2003.The rates are prescribed by Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) pursuant
to provisions of Electricity Act, 2003.

ii. Residential Buildings - Il Class

At rates prescribed by Bureau of Public
Enterprises.

iii. Buildings:
a) Residential Buildings other than Class-!lI
b) Non-residential Buildings

¢) Plant and Machinery,
Workshop Machinery and Civil
Construction Machinery

d) Furniture and Equipments other than
(i) above.

At technically assessed rates arrived based on
estimated useful life of the asset

iv. Other Assets

At useful life prescribed in Schedule-ll of the
Companies Act,2013

Rates under i and iii are followed so long as they are higher than the rate covered underiv.
Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Fixed Assets during the year is charged on pro rate basis
from/up to the month in which the asset is available for use/disposed in line with the industry practice and

policy of the Company.

Assets costing less than Rs.5,000/- are fully depreciated in the year in which they are put to use.

Part B of Schedule |l of Companies Act, 2013 states “The useful life or residual value of any specific asset,
as notified for accounting purposes by a Regulatory Authority constituted under an Act of Parliament or by
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the Central Government shall be applied in calculating the depreciation to be provided for asset imespective
of the requirements of this Schedule.”

NTPL shall have the option to apply componentization to non-regulated assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate.

Machinery Spares

Initial spares purchased along with property, plant and equipment are capitalized and depreciated along
with the asset. Insurance spares purchased subsequent to the commissioning of the property. plant and
equipment costing Rs.50 lakh and above which can be used only in connection with an item of property,
piant and equipment and whose usage are expected to be irregular are fully depreciated over the residual
useful life of the assets and if the spare is utilized, the carrying cost is fully charged as depreciation in
the year of utilization.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized:
* on disposal; or
* when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.
The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is to be
included in the statement of profit or loss when the item is derecognized.

ii. Intangible Assets
Recognition and measurement
The Company recognizes an intangible asset and measures at cost if, and only if:
(a) itis probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to
the entity; and

(b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Research and development - Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on
an individual project are recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available

foruse orsale

* Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

* How the asset will generate future economic benefits

* Theavailability of resources to complete the asset

* The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development
Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets - Computer software that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful
lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Fixed Assets relating to Research & Development are depreciated in a like manner as any other fixed
assets of the company.
Subseguent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capilized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortization
Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values
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over the estimated useful lives, and is generally recognized in profit and loss. Amortization methods,
usefut lives and residual vaiues are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
The estimated useful lives of intangible assets for the current period are as follows:

Development (Internally generated projects) Amortized over the useful life
Software More than Rs. 10 Lakh 5 years on straight line method
Software Rs. 10 Lakh or less Fully on year of acquisition

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

iii. Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The basis of cost:
i. Coal: Weighted Average cost.
ii. Fuel such as Light Diesel Oil, Heavy Furnace Qil: On weighted average cost.
ili. Steresand Spares: Weighted average cost or Net realizable Value whichever is lower.
iv. Fly ash : At cost.
v. Waste product, used beits reconditioned Stores and Spares discarded for disposal,
medicine and canteen stores are taken at NIL value.
vi. Goods in transit including goods received but pending for inspection and acceptance: At cost.

Transit and handling losses of coal as per Company's norms are included in cost of coal.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

iv. Prepaid expenses

Expenses are accounted under prepaid expenses only where the amounts relating to unexpired period
exceed Rs, 100.00 Lakh in each case.

v. Financial Instruments

Non-derivative financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categeries:

% Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit and loss account or, through

other comprehensive income) and

“ Those measured atamortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’'s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. The Company's financial assets trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and other current assets.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financia! liabilities are recognized at fair value and, in the
case of icans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings etc.

59
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vi. Impairment

Financial assets (including receivables)

Ind AS 108 requires foliowing an expected credit ioss model for the impairment of financial assets.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognized. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected creditiosses and changes in those
expected credit losses. Consequently, more timely information is provided about expected credit losses.

Expected loss shall be measured and provided either at an amount equal to (a) 12 month expected
losses; or (b) lifetime expected losses. If the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since inception, then an amount equai to 12 month expected loss is provided. In other
cases, lifetime credit losses shall be provided. For trade receivables, a simplified approach is available,
where by an assessment of increase in credit risk need not be performed at each reporting date.
Instead, an entity can choose to provide for expected losses based on lifetime expected losses.

Non-Financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated and the impairment loss is recognized in Profit and Loss Account.

The carrying amount of cash generating units is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date where there is
any indication of impairment based on internal/external indicators. An impairment loss is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss where the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the
cash generating units. The impairment loss is reversed if there is change in the recoverable amount and
such loss either no longer exists or has decreased.

vii. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each reporting date. Fair vaiue is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

viii. Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries, incentives, short term leave salary etc. are
expensed as the related service is provided. Aliability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation are estimated reliably.

Defined benefit & contribution plans

The benefits under Provident Fund, Paid Leave / Half Pay Leave are in the nature of defined Benefit Plan.
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is caiculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair vaiue of any pian assets. The contribution of
Rs.310,53 lakh (Previous year Rs.298.25 lakh) towards Provident Fund and Rs.44.02 iakh (Previous
year R8.3.76 lakh) towards Leave Salary for the year are recognized as expense and is charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. @
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Long term employee benefits such as leave salary are provided as per the guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India.

Post-Employment benefits such as Gratuity are also treated as defined benefit plan. Contribution to
Gratuity is made to Gratuity Trust. Based on actuarial valuation, best estimate of centribution towards
gratuity for the financial year is Rs. 62.59 lakh.

Post-Retirement Medical Assistance (PRMA) is treated as defined Contribution scheme and accounted
accordingly in respect to the employees retired prior to 01-01-2007 for which a separate reserve fund is
created out of the accumulated reserve profit with corresponding investments. The liability as at
31% March, 2017 ascertained as per actuariai valuation amounts to Rs. 97.63 lakh.

Contribution to Provident fund, superannuation fund, which includes post-retirement Medical Assistance
are recognized in the Profit and Loss account on the basis of actual liability and funded to trust.

The calculation of defined benefit cbligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The Employee benefits are recognized as and when arises in line with the parent company and the
overall trust and funds are maintained and valued by the actuary of the parent company NLC India Ltd.,

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Company recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of
ind AS 37& involves the payment of termination benefits. If benefits are not expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are discounted.

ix. Allocation of common charges/social overhead expenses
These are allocated to production units based on salaries and wages of these units.

X. Prior period items

Prior period errors as a result of accounting polices, changes in accounting estimates and errors have
been corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in
which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented.

Transactions arising out of errors or omissions exceeding Rs.100 lakh in each case considered as
material are accounted under Pricr Period Transactions. Extra-ordinary items of value exceeding
Rs.100 lakh in each case are considered as material and accounted for under Extra-ordinary items.
Prior Pericd/Extra-ordinary items are not considered for stock valuation purposes.

xi. Event occurring after the balance sheet date

Events occurring after the reporting period, between the end of the reporting period and the date when
the financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors are classified as adjusting events
(those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period) and non-
adjusting (those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period).

For this purpose, event having an effect of Rs. 100 lakh and above in value is considered as significant.
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xii. Revenue

Sale of power

Sale of power is accounted for by following Act, 2003, where the tariff rates are approved by the Central
Electricity Regulatory Commission constituted under the Eiectricity Act, 2003, In case of power stations
where the tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional tariff rates, calculated on the basis of the
CERC's norms and parameters for capacity charges are adopted.

True up/ down between provisional rates and CERC determined rates are performed for each Tariff
period to ensure revenue is booked at the right amount during the right period and ensure matching of
costs and revenue.

Others
Revenue received from customers is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie
taking into account the amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the entity.

Cash discounts for prompt payment are accounted as and when the related dues are settled.’
Surcharge on differential tariff is recognized immediately on receipt of the final tariff order since the
realization is probable and the amount of interest can be estimated reliably.

Interest/surcharge on late payment/overdue sundry debtors for saie of energy are recognized when no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

interest/Surcharge recoverable on advances to suppliers as well as warranty claims/liquidated damages
wherever there is uncertainly of realization/acceptance are not treated as accrued and are therefore,
accounted for on receipt/acceptance.

insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in year in the year of acceptance. Other insurance
claims are accounted for based on certainty of realization.

Dividends

Revenue on dividends has been recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Foreign currency transactions

The Company has presented its financiai statements in INR, which is the functional currency of the
company.
(nitial recognition and measurement

Foreign currency transaction is recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the transaction.

Subsequent measurement

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate at the end of each reporting
period.

Recognition of exchange gain/loss

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period orin
previous financial statements are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they arise.

xiii. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit and loss exept to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognized directly in equity or in OCI.
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Current tax

Current tax (inciuding Minimum Alternate Tax) comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. it is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any
tax arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized for:

* temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a

business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and loss; and

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that itis probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when
the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

xiv. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs (net of interest earned on temporary investments) directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the assetl. Qualifying asset is an asset
which necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the year in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

xv. Provisions
Recognition and measurement

The Company recognizes a provision when:

{(a)it has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

(b} it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and

{c)a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If these conditions are not met, no provision shall be recognized.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
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VI,

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the discount is recegnized as finance cost.
xvi. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and in hand, short-term deposits with a
maturity of three months or less and short term deposits for lien.

xvii. Construction Projects
1. Power Generation Unit
Test and Trial production of Thermal Power Generation unit commences from the date of
synchronization and goes upto the date of commercial commissioning. Provisional takeover date
of the Turbo generator pursuant to Seventy-two hours’ full load operation is deemed as the date
of commercial commissioning of the units. Depreciation charge commences from the date of
commercial commissioning. Direct expenses and interest charges incurred during the test and
trial run are capitalized and the power sale revenue earned during that period is abated to the
capital cost of the project.

Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

VIl. Related party Disclosure

As per ind AS 24, para 13, NLC India Limited is a parent company of NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited
(reporting entity) by holding 89% in the equity participation.

As perindAS 24, para 25, NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited (reporting entity) is exempt from the disclosure
requirements of paragraph 18 in relation to related party transactions and outstanding balances, inciuding
commitments, with:

a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity; i.e. The
Government of India is having significant influence over NLC Tamit Nadu Power Limited by having control
on NLC India Limited as Government of India holds 90% Equity shares of NLC India Limited, the parent
company.

As perInd AS 24, para 26, if a reporting entity applies the exemption as above, it shall disclose the
following about the transactions and related outstanding balances.

(a) Name of the Government : Government of India

(b) Nature of relationship : Significant influence through NLC India Limited, the parent company
(c) The following are the transactions with NLC India Limited undertaken during the financial year 2016-17.

(i) Unsecured Term Loan {Rs.in lakh)
s Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan Interest
Sanctioned avalled | Opening | drawn | Principal | Closing -
No. fon balance repaid | balance paid
1 50,000 50,000 32,000 18,000 32,000 18,000 3,759
2 1,00,000 34,000 0 34,000 0 34,000 31
Total 32,000 52,000 32,000 52,000 3,790

C—
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ii. Guarantee:

(a) Letter of Comfortin favour of Power Finance Corporation Ltd on the Rupee Term Loans of
Rs.3,09,330 lakh availed by NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited.

(b) Letter of Comfortin favour of Bank of India on the Working capitai loans with Fund based Limit
Rs, 65,000 lakh and Non Fund based Limit of Rs.20,000 lakh availed by NLC Tamil Nadu Power
Limited.

iir. The proportionate Employees Salary of NLC [ndia Ltd for Rs.364.62 lakh has been recognizedin
profit and loss account based on the expertise and time spent towards the various works on behalf of

NLC TamiiNadu Power Limited such as Power Billing; Dues follow up from DISCOMS, floating and

finalizing major contracts, loans funding arrangements and other allied services.

iv. Apart from the above, the expenses which are incurred on behalf of NLC TamilNadu Power Limited
are reimbursed at actual such as Meeting expenses, tender advertisement etc.
VIll. Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the

profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

IX. Operating Segments

As per Ind AS 108, an operating segment is a component of an entity:

(@) thatengages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including
revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity.)

{b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and

(c) forwhich discrete financial information is available.

NLC Tamil Nadu Power Limited's only operating segment is generation of electricity for which the
operating results are regularly reviewed. Revenue generated from External Customers is
Rs.261178.28 lakh.

All the external sales are within India. Non-Current Assets (other than Deferred Tax Asset and Post
Employment Benefit Assets) as reported in the Balance Sheet are located in India.

The following are the major External Customers who contributes 10% or more of the Company's revenue:
(a) Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Ltd - Rs.99,672.76 lakh {39.52%)
(b) Bangalore Electricity Supply Company Ltd - Rs.28,624.95 lakh (11.35%)
X. Current/ non-current classification
An asset is classified as current if:
(a) itis expected to be realized or sold or consumed in the Company's normal operating cycle;
(b} itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
{c) itis expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;
(d) itis cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current if:
{a) it is expected to settle in normal operating cycle;
(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) itis expected to be settled with twelve months after the reporting period;
(d) it has no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
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All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months.

XI. Contingent Liabilities

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capitai Accounts and not provided
for Rs.42,321.00 lakh (Previous Year Rs.69,532.29 lakh)

(b) Company has given letter of credit towards security deposit for Rs. 92.00 lakh (Previous Year
Rs.37.00 lakh)
(c) Company has given Foreign Letter of credit towards procurement of import coal for Rs.44398.69 iakh
(Previous year Rs. Nil)
(d) Income Tax
i. Assessment Order and Demand nctice for Assessment Year 2014-15 raising the demand for
Rs.243 .64 lakh. The Assessment order and Demand notice has been contested before
CIT (Appeais) on 01.02.2017 and the same has not been provided for.

ii. Assessment Order and Demand notice for Assessment Year 2013-14 raising the demand for
Rs.108.06 lakh. The Assessment order and Demand notice has been contested before
CiT (Appeals) on 28.04.2016 and the same has not been provided for.

e) Contingent liability exists in respect of service tax on allotment of lease hold land by V.O.
Chidambaranar Port Trust on Rs.4,849.71 lakh paid as upfront premium has not been provided for.

f) Ademand of Rs. 205.63 lakh (Previous year Rs.205.63 fakh) has been raised by Excise Authority
towards service tax payable by NLC India Ltd., the holding company for the service of
manpower provided to NTPL. This case has been decided in favour of holding Company. However,
the department has gone for appeal against the order of Commissioner.

gl Ademand for Rs.307.86 lakh has been raised by V.O. Chidambaranar Port Trust towards Interest
on non-payment of ficense fee refated to North Gargo Berth-l from 01.02.2010to 31.03.2017 has not
been provided for.

hy Ademand of Rs. 8737.27 lakh has been raised by V.O. Chidambaranar Port Trust towards shortfail
in minimum Guarantee Throughput (MGT) from 20.01.2012 to 19.01.2017 for 173,81,680 MT at
prevailing Wharfage Rate per Ton for coal handled at North Cargo Berth-land out of which Rs. 5751.47
lakh has not been provided as the same is pertaining to the period prior to the Date of Commissioning
ie. 18.06.2015.
i) Arbitration claim
(iy Ramky Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd., the construction contractor of Sea Water Intake Channel has
filed arbitration petition on Liquidated Damages deducted and other issues for Rs.1642.00 lakh
and proceedings under process which has not been provided for.

(i) Gammon india Ltd., the construction contractor of Natural Drought Cooling Tower (TAG) and
Chimney (TA7) has filed arbitration petition on Liquidated Damages deducted and other issues for
which Arbitration proceedings under process has not been provided for.

j) As per the information available with the Company there are no dues outstanding including interest
as on 31s*March,2017 to Small and Micro Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006.

k) Contribution towards Gratuity scheme and long term compensated absences are paid by
NLC India Ltd (Holding company) to LIC of India in respect of all group company employees
and the share of NLC Tamil Nadu Power Ltd (NTPL) is recovered by Holding company. Since
consoiidated Policy has been taken covering all the group company employees.

Iy Balance of Debtors and Creditors are subject to confirmation of balances.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with
current year's classification / disclosure.
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